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tRADitionAL 
oWnERS
WE, ThE GREATER ShEPPARTON 
CiTy COUNCiL, ACkNOWLEdGE ThE 
TRAdiTiONAL OWNERS Of ThE 
LANd WhiCh NOW COmPRiSES 
GREATER ShEPPARTON. 

WE PAy RESPECT TO ThEiR TRibAL 
ELdERS, WE CELEbRATE ThEiR 
CONTiNUiNG CULTURE ANd WE 
ACkNOWLEdGE ThE mEmORy Of 
ThEiR ANCESTORS.

ouR 
LoGo
GREATER ShEPPARTON CiTy COUNCiL’S 
LOGO WAS dEvELOPEd fOLLOWiNG 
AmALGAmATiONS iN 1994.

The colours reflect the 
municipality’s strong growth  
and development through  
the merging of agriculture  
and water into the wider  
community.

CAREtAkER 
ELECtion 
PERioD
The annual report is being released  
during the Election Caretaker Period which 
restricts the publishing of certain information  
that could be deemed to influence  
an election outcome.
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ViSion
GREATER ShEPPARTON, GREATER fUTURE

AS ThE fOOd bOWL Of AUSTRALiA, A SUSTAiNAbLE, 
iNNOvATivE ANd divERSE COmmUNiTy.

Greater Shepparton City Council provides more than 100  
services to the community and a range of community facilities  
and other support.

Council’s vision for a greater future is the cornerstone of the  
four-year Council Plan which was developed with input from  
more than 600 people in 2009.

The four-year plan guides Council’s strategic direction and budget 
planning through to 2013 with a commitment to six key strategic 
objectives, 35 core focus areas and 130 specific actions to help 
support this vision.

Council’s Annual Report provides a summary of progress against the 
Council Plan priorities for 2011/12 and the associated Annual Budget. 
The Annual Report also provides a report on the operations and 
services provided by Council and contains other information  
required by legislation.

kEy StRAtEGiC 
oBjECtiVES
SEttLEmEnt AnD HouSinG
Committed to growth within a consolidated and sustainable 
development framework.

Community LiFE
Enhance social connectedness; physical and mental health and 
wellbeing; education; and participatory opportunities in order to 
improve liveability and a greater range of community services.

EnViRonmEnt
Conserve and enhance significant natural environments and  
cultural heritage.

EConomiC DEVELoPmEnt
Promote economic growth, business development and 
diversification with a focus on strengthening the agricultural industry

inFRAStRuCtuRE
Provide urban and rural infrastructure to enhance the performance  
of the municipality and facilitate growth.

CounCiL oRGAniSAtion AnD mAnAGEmEnt
Deliver best practice management; governance; administrative  
and financial systems that support the delivery of Council programs 
to the community of Greater Shepparton.
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A SNAPShOT Of SOmE Of ThE mAjOR dECiSiONS, 
iNiTiATivES, PROjECTS, OUTCOmES ANd  
iNfLUENCES fOR 2011/12.

01
At A GLAnCE
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tHAnkS to ACtinG CEo
I would like to start this CEO message 
with a special thank you to Julie Salomon  
who was appointed as Acting Chief 
Executive Officer from July to December 
2011 while my recruitment took place. Julie 
oversaw a number of major initiatives and 
provided leadership and guidance to the 
organisation and community during this 
interim period. Her handover was a great 
help as I settled in and began planning for 
the year ahead and beyond. 

oRGAniSAtionAL REViEW 
– GooD to GREAt
One of the first things I started as CEO 
was an organisational review to identify 
ways to move the organisation and 
progress on a journey from good to great. 

More than 400 staff participated in 
the review providing their thoughts on 
what the organisation could do better, 
where it could be more efficient, what 
gaps exist and what barriers currently 
stood in the way to achieving better 
outcomes for the community. 

The review involved: 
•	 allowing	any	staff	member	who 
 wished to to have confidential 
  discussions with consultants 
 (approximately 300 staff availed 
 themselves of this opportunity); 
•	 preparing	an	issues	paper	which 
 highlighted the issues and provided 
 draft recommendations for consideration; 
•	 providing	an	opportunity	for	staff	to		
 comment on these identified issues  
 and proposed recommendations; 
•	 developing	functional	maps	to		 	
 capture service gaps and potential  
 efficiency opportunities; 
•	 providing	the	opportunity	for	staff	to		
 comment on the functional charts; and 
•	 producing	a	new	organisational	structure		
 and a transitional management plan. 

The transitional management plan provided 
key actions across seven key areas: 
•	 strategy	and	planning;	 
•	 leadership	and	style; 
•	 customer	focus; 
•	 people; 
•	 process	management,	improvement		
 and innovation; 
•	 success	and	sustainability;	and 
•	 elimination	of	the	destabilising			
 influences.

The new organisational structure was 
introduced in the middle of June. It 
involved significant organisational 
change including re-advertising the 
majority of the Executive roles and  
re-aligning a number of management 
roles and functions. 

It is my view that this change has 
helped refocus the organisation a 
year after the former CEO announced 
his resignation. I have put structures 
and plans in place to strengthen 
connections with the community 
and support improved service 
delivery, increase efficiency, provide 
organisational and community 
leadership, internal systems and the 
organisational strategic focus to meet 
the needs of a growing community.

A report will be presented to Council early 
in the 2012/13 financial year outlining 
implementation of the action plans. While 
there are still some areas under review 
that require further investigation in 2012/13 
I plan to move the executive and senior 
leadership recruitment through as quickly 
as possible and it is my expectation that 
a significant number of these actions will 
be well underway, if not complete, by 
September 2012. However it is expected 
that the organisational change process will 
not be completed for 12 to 18 months due 
to the size of the task involved. 

I would like to thank all the staff for 
their willingness to embrace not only 
the organisational review but also the 
change process itself.

tHE 2013/17 CounCiL PLAn
Part of this change process will involve 
the formulation of a new Council Plan 
for 2013/14 to 2017/18. The council to be 
elected later this year will be required to 
prepare a new Council Plan.

Significant planning has occurred for a 
major consultation to be held in early 
2012/13 with 100 staff volunteering 
to visit thousands of people across 
the municipality to collect data about 
their ideas for what will make Greater 
Shepparton even greater and what  
Council can do to support that vision. 

This project will be launched early in 
2012/13 and the data will be collated 
and presented to the new Council post 
elections in October to assist with forming 
the new Council Plan. 

Before the program has even been 
launched, staff and the community 
have shown great enthusiasm for it and 
I am confident it will play a key part in 
refocusing our energies as an organisation 
into 2012/13 and beyond. 

A SPECiAL mEntion ABout FLooDS
Another very significant event which 
impacted on our community and organisation 
was severe flooding experienced in late 
February and early March 2012 which 
followed unprecedented localised rain 
through the north of our municipality.

 The State Emergency Service is the lead 
agency in the event of a flood but councils 
provide around the clock support to them 
during an emergency and have a significant 
role in providing emergency relief services 
and longer term flood recovery support. 

I was particularly impressed at the way 
the community pulled together through 
this disaster and beyond and also at the 
incredible commitment of Council staff in 
supporting the community and each other 
through this difficult period and beyond. 

While not wanting to take anything away 
from those that were impacted, we were 
very lucky that things weren’t any worse 
than they were and that there was no loss 
of life as we have unfortunately seen in 
other flood situations. 

I would like to take this opportunity to 
acknowledge the community for their hard 
work and determination to get back on their 
feet at the same time as offering practical 
support and comfort to each other.

Council has held nearly 20 meetings and 
events in the communities of Congupna, 
Katandra West and Tallygaroopna in an 
effort to support the community and to 
also look at practical ways in which we may 
be able to provide engineering solutions as 
well as pre warning systems to minimise 
impacts in such an event in the future. 
We will continue to work with these 
communities in the 2012/13 financial year.

CEo’S mESSAGE
GAVin CAtoR StARtED WitH GREAtER SHEPPARton City CounCiL AS  
CHiEF ExECutiVE oFFiCER in jAnuARy 2012 FoLLoWinG tHE RESiGnAtion  
oF tHE FoRmER CEo in juLy 2011. 
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Community SAtiSFACtion SuRVEy
An annual state-wide telephone survey 
measures perceptions of community 
satisfaction for councils including 
Greater Shepparton across four  
key indicators plus overall performance.

In response to feedback from local 
councils, Local Government Victoria 
introduced methodological and content 
changes to the Community Satisfaction 
Survey in 2012. The changes aim to 
provide the sector with more reliable 
and meaningful results to inform 
decision-making and support  
strategic planning.

The survey provides core questions 
as well as optional questions which 
councils can pick and choose 
from depending on their particular 
information and reporting needs. 
Councils are also able to include tailored 
questions and sampling requirements.

Methodological improvements to the 
survey in 2012 included increasing the 
sample size from the previous minimum 
of 350 respondents per municipality 
to 400 and ensuring that the sample 
reflects the demographic composition 
of the municipality. 

The survey also allows for respondents to 
be ‘residents over 18 years of age’ instead of 
restricting respondents to ‘head of household’.

These changes, together with  
revisions to the performance scale  
and scoring, have improved the 
useability of the survey.

However, the changes mean that  
direct comparison with previous 
Community Satisfaction Survey  
results is not possible. 

CAtEGoRy RAtinG (2012) REGionAL CEntRE AVERAGE

OvERALL PERfORmANCE 55 60

OvERALL  COUNCiL diRECTiON 51 52

CUSTOmER CONTACT 68 72

AdvOCACy 55 55

COmmUNiTy ENGAGEmENT 56 57

kEy AREAS outComE

kEy STRATEGiC ACTiviTiES Council has achieved significant progress on each of the 11 key strategic activities set for 2011/12,   
 particularly considering the significant impact of flooding, the departure of the former CEO and   
 considerable attention being given to the organisational review.

 highlights include: 
 • The preparation of redevelopment plans for the vaughan/maude Street precinct.
 • The adoption in june of the Safer City Strategy for the Cbd and victoria Lake Precinct and
  securing of $250,000 from the department of justice for its implementation which has  
  now commenced. 
 • Securing building better Regional Cities funding, and incorporating the housing Strategy into   
  the Greater Shepparton Planning Scheme.

OPERATiONAL ExPENSES  Council delivered a $101.2 million operating budget, well within the performance targets set as part of  
  Council’s long term strategic financial plan.

CAPiTAL WORkS Council delivered a $26.2 million capital works program, or 80 per cent of the $32.9 million originally   
 earmarked at the start of 2011/12.

  Larger projects include the Shepparton Art museum redevelopment, Tatura flood mitigation works,   
  knight Street drainage upgrade, completion of the kialla Lakes drive culverts, jackson Park refresh  
  and improvements to regional sporting facilities at mcEwen Reserve, Central Park and deakin Reserve,  
 to name a few.

 The capital works program was revised at the mid-year budget review to account for external delays   
 impacting on Council’s contribution to major streetscape works in vaughan Street and to the mooroopna  
  West flood Corridor.

iNdEbTEdNESS Council took up $3 million in new borrowings in 2011/12, taking total non-current liabilities to   
 $16.5 million at 30 june. This places council at 16.3 per cent indebtedness as a proportion of own source  
 revenue, well below the 40 per cent target set by the State Government.

ASSET RENEWAL GAP for 2011/12 the renewal spend against the depreciation measure is approximately 80 per cent, down   
 from a budgeted 90 per cent due to a number of capital projects being carried forward to 2012/13.  
 The floods of 2010, 2011 and 2012 have also impacted on this gap due to damage to key assets.

 financial modelling has been targeting the renewal gap expenditure at approximately 90 per cent   
 against the depreciation charge. The introduction of a new asset management system will see Council   
 move from using depreciation as a guide, to a condition based assessment model, with a strong focus  
 on asset management, service planning, and the long term resources needed to support a  
 growing community.
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CEo’S mESSAGE
SERViCE AREA RESuLtS
In addition to the four key indicators, Greater Shepparton City Council conducts its own independent survey to monitor 
perceptions of satisfaction with overall performance and 14 key service areas. This survey showed downward trends in 
satisfaction with all services and a significant downward trend in overall satisfaction across most categories. This  
information formed a key part of the organisational review focus.

AuSPoLL SERViCE RESuLtS – 2012 ComPARED to 2010

AuSPoLL SERViCE RESuLtS – 2012 ComPARED to ViCtoRiAn RuRAL AVERAGE
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CounCiL HoStED A numBER oF  
mEEtinGS to  SEEk Community  
inPut FoR itS SuBmiSSion to tHE 
muRRAy DARLinG BASin PLAn.

“
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CALEnDAR 
SnAPSHot 
juLy 
•	 The	region	shuts	down	for	a	 
 large ‘Say no to fireblight’ rally in   
 Shepparton attracting thousands of 
 people from across the Goulburn Valley.

•	 The	new	Murchison	Transfer	Station 
  opens following a $700,000 conversion  
 from a former landfill site. 

AuGuSt
•	 Council	hosts	international	community		
 development pioneers for a special  
 conference.

•	 Shepparton	hosts	the	first	ever		 	
 A-League soccer practice match in  
 the municipality featuring Melbourne  
 Heart and New Zealand’s Wellington  
 Phoenix. 

•	 Kialla	Lakes	Drive	re-opens	following	 
 a major upgrade to minimise road  
 closures during a minor or moderate  
 flood. 

SEPtEmBER
•	 KidsFest	attracts	record	crowds.

•	 Tatura’s	Crouching	Emu	Revegetation		
 Project is a finalist in the Keep   
 Australia Beautiful Awards.

oCtoBER
•	 The	GV	Link	Freight	and	Logistics		
 Centre land acquisition settles 
 following several years of negotiations.

•	 New	automated	and	self-cleaning 
 toilets open to the public in   
 Shepparton’s Queens Gardens. 

noVEmBER
•	 A	$350,000	upgrade	of	turf,	spectator		
 viewing, fencing, irrigation and paths  
 finishes at McEwen Reserve’s  
 soccer facilities.

•	 Gavin	Cator	is	named	as	Greater			
 Shepparton’s new CEO.

DECEmBER
•	 Shepparton	is	selected	to	host	the		
 launch of the national consultation  
 phase of the revised Murray Darling  
 Basin Plan draft. 

•	 A	new	Ask	of	Government	advocacy		
 document is launched revealing the  
 top priorities for government support  
 and funding across key sectors in  
 the municipality.

•	 Cr	Michael	Polan	is	named	Mayor	 
 and Cr Chris Hazelman Deputy Mayor. 

•	 New	Christmas	decorations	 
 are unveiled. 

•	 New	lights	and	a	better	oval	at	 
 Central Park Reserve are in place  
 following a $250,000 upgrade.

•	 Summer	parking	retail	promotion		
 kicks off with extended parking in the  
 Shepparton Central Business District. 

jAnuARy 
•	 New	CEO	Gavin	Cator	starts.

•	 The	Moooving	Art	cow	herd		 	
 celebrates their 10th birthday with  
 a special family day at Victoria Park  
 Lake and a new cow added to the  
 herd following a design competition.

•	 A	3-tonne	load	limit	is	in	place	on	the		
 70-year-old Watts Road bridge due to  
 structural deterioration.

•	 Greater	Shepparton’s	first	Heritage		
 Advisory Committee is formed.

•	 Greater	Shepparton’s	Safe		 	
 Communities Advisory Committee  
 is formed.

•	 Council	receives	a	resolution	from	the		
 Audit and Risk Management   
 Committee recommending a number  
 of actions to improve governance and  
 strategic planning for the Shepparton  
 Show Me Section 86 Committee.

FEBRuARy 
•	 Shepparton	Art	Museum	re-opens		
 with a new look, a new name and  
 new facilities following a $1.98  
 million redevelopment.

•	 Works	on	a	$630,000	upgrade	of		
 drainage in Knight Street begin.

•	 Council	hosts	a	series	of	workshops		
 to seek input for a submission to the  
 Murray Darling Basin Plan including a 
  joint regional submission with the  
 Murray River Group of Councils and  
 Strathbogie Shire. 

•	 Greater	Shepparton	Women’s	 
 Charter Alliance Advisory Committee  
 officially forms.

•	 Council	submits	the	Austrailan	Botanic		
 Gardens Shepparton to the Registrar  
 of Geographic Names for approval to  
 name the former Kialla Landfill site.

mARCH
•	 Hundreds	of	women	join	celebrations		
 to mark International Women’s Day.

•	 Smoke	free	playgrounds	are	introduced 
 for the first time in Greater Shepparton.

•	 Unprecedented	rain	sees	floods	badly 
 impact the northern part of the 
 municipality including a number of 
 homes completely inundated, farms  
 underwater and towns and other  
 properties cut off. 

•	 Council	adopts	a	Cultural	Diversity	and		
 Inclusion Strategy and Action Plan as  
 part of Harmony Week celebrations.
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tHE SAm jinkS ExHiBition SEt A nEW AttEnDAnCE RECoRD FoR tHE SHEPPARton ARt muSEum. 
PiCtuRED iS ARtiSt SAm jinkS WitH HiS SCuLPtuRE, WomAn AnD CHiLD. 

APRiL
•	 A	cycling	forum	is	held	to	help	shape	 
 a draft Cycling Strategy.

•	 The	inaugural	RiverConnect	Festival		
 and Emerge Festivals are held.

•	 Works	on	a	$660,000	replacement	of		
 rail culverts begin as part of the Tatura  
 Floodplain Management Strategy.

•	 Greater	Shepparton’s	Heritage	Study		
 Stage 2B is released for community  
 input proposing a number of additional  
 places of cultural heritage significance  
 for inclusion within the Heritage 
 Overlay as part of a future amendment 
 to the Greater Shepparton Planning  
 Scheme.

•	 Council	agrees	to	a	Memorandum	of		
	 Understanding	with	Goulburn	River		
 Valley Tourism.

mAy 
•	 The	Sam	Jinks	sculpture	exhibition		
 opens at Shepparton Art Museum  
 and breaks all attendance records  
 for the facility.

•	 Permanent	two	hour	parking	is 
 introduced in Shepparton’s Central  
 Business District following a special  
 retail promotion and extended trial.

•	 Council	takes	its	2012/13	draft	budget		
 on the road to seek community input. 

•	 A	new	$120,000	shelter	opens	at		
 Deakin Reserve providing seating for  
 about 150 people.  

•	 Council	introduces	household	battery		
 recycling permanently following a  
 successful trial that saved more than  
 270 kgs of batteries from ending up  
 in landfill.

junE
•	 The	first	of	several	information		 	
 sessions are held for the upcoming  
 October Council elections. 

•	 Fraser	Street	toilets	in	the	Shepparton		
 Mall are upgraded.

•	 The	Vaughan	Street	retail	precinct		
 sells after the previous developer  
 went into receivership leaving the  
 large development site vacant. 

•	 SPC	Ardmona	announces	a	$90		 	
 million upgrade to its Mooroopna and  
 Shepparton food manufacturing plants  
 including new product lines.

•	 An	organisational	review	is	unveiled		
 with significant structural changes  
 and an accompanying issues paper  
 and action plan to improve service  
 delivery and efficiency. 

•	 The	Victorian	Planning	Minister 
 approves an amendment to   
 incorporate the Greater Shepparton  
 Housing Strategy into the Planning  
 Scheme.

•	 Council	is	named	as	one	of	three 
  regional cities in Victoria to receive  
 funding through the Building Better  
 Regional Cities Program. Council will  
 receive more than $5.4 million through 
  the program to support flood   
 mitigation works in the Mooroopna  
 West Growth Corridor.

•	 The	draft	Adapation	Action	Plan	for		
 a Future With Less Water is endorsed  
 following widespread consultation.



14



A PROfiLE Of OUR REGiON ANd OUR ORGANiSATiON

02
ABout uS



16

ouR  
LoCAtion
New Census data has just been released 
for some key demographic elements of 
the City of Greater Shepparton 
geographic area. 

•	 Nearly	62,000	people	over		 	
 2421 square kilometres.

•	 Fifth	largest	regional	centre	in	Victoria.

•	 One	of	the	fastest	growing	regions	 
 in Victoria.

•	 Centrally	located	along	the	Goulburn		
 and Broken Rivers.

•	 Easy	access	to	the	Goulburn	Valley		
 and Midland Highways providing 
 great transport connections and   
 lifestyle opportunities.

•	 Two	hours’	drive	from	Melbourne	 
 and excellent road connections  
 to Adelaide, Canberra, Sydney  
 and Brisbane.

•	 Greater	Shepparton’s	population			
 is split between the urban areas of 
 Shepparton, Mooroopna, Kialla and  
 

 Tatura and the smaller centres and  
 rural areas in and around Congupna,  
 Dookie, Katandra, Kialla West,   
 Merrigum, Murchison, Tallygaroopna,  
	 Toolamba	and	Undera.

•	 This	split	reflects	the	range	of	 
 lifestyle choices available across the  
 municipality, from small urban blocks  
 close to high-quality amenities, through  
 to lifestyle properties as well as large  
 working orchards and farms.

PoPuLAtion 
•	 From	2006	to	2011,	the	City	of	Greater		
 Shepparton’s population increased  
 by 3354 people (5.9 per cent).   
 This represents an average annual  
 population change of 1.18 per cent  
 per year over the period. 

CountRy oF BiRtH 
•	 13	per	cent	of	people	were	 
 born overseas.

•	 27	per	cent	arrived	in	Australia	within		
 the last five years. 

•	 The	largest	changes	in	country	of	birth		
 from 2006 to 2011 were India (+581),  
 Afghanistan (+436) and Sudan (+140).

LAnGuAGES SPokEn
•	 10	per	cent	of	people	come	from		
 countries where English is not the  
 first language. 

•	 12	per	cent	of	people	speak	a		 	
 language other than English at home. 

•	 Italian,	Arabic,	Persian/Dari,	Turkish,		
 Albanian, Punjabi, Greek, Macedonian,  
 Mandarin and Filipino/Tagalog are the  
 most commonly spoken languages  
 other than English.

•	 Between	2006	and	2011,	the	number		
 of people who spoke a language other  
 than English at home increased by  
 1910 or 34 per cent and the number  
 of people who spoke English only  
 increased by 1020 or 2 per cent.

•	 The	largest	changes	in	the	spoken		
 languages were Persian/Dari (+530  
 people), Punjabi (+357 people), Arabic  
 (+ 321 people) and Italian (-122 people).

AGE
•	 Compared	to	regional	Victoria,	 
 Greater Shepparton has a higher   
 percentage of people in all age groups  
 between 0-44.

•	 The	largest	changes	in	age	structure		
 between 2006 and 2011 were in the  
 60-64 age group (+731 people), the  
 0-4 age group (+537 people), the  
 25-29 age group (+368 people) and  
 the 65-69 age group (+366 people).

ouR REGion
GREAtER SHEPPARton iS A ViBRAnt, DiVERSE Community LoCAtED APPRoximAtELy tWo HouRS noRtH  
oF mELBouRnE in tHE HEARt oF tHE GouLBuRn VALLEy – tHE FooD BoWL oF AuStRALiA.

As a major regional centre experiencing strong growth, Greater Shepparton offers an enviable lifestyle and diverse  
employment base through our urban and rural communities.

7.1
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ouR 
EConomy
•	 Estimated	gross	economic	output	 
 of $6.9 billion per annum.

•	 The	region’s	export-focused	agricultural		
 industries generate about 25 per cent  
 of the total value of Victoria’s  
 agricultural production. 

•	 Irrigated	agricultural	industry	generates		
 produce worth approximately $480  
 million gross value per annum and  
 our rural food processing industries  
 produce an annual gross value of  
 approximately $3.3 billion. 

•	 The	$2	billion	Northern	Victoria	Irrigation		
 Renewal Project (NVIRP) is the biggest  
 investment of its kind in Australia,  
 with automated technology and repairs  
 to outdated channels dramatically  
 improving water delivery and efficiency.  
 The modernisation of the region’s  
 irrigation network will bring it to a  
 world-class standard.

•	 Major	employers	include	SPC	Ardmona,		
 Campbell’s Soups, Tatura Milk Industries, 
	 Unilever,	Snow	Brand,	Greater		 	
 Shepparton City Council, Department  
 of Primary Industries, Goulburn Valley
  Health, Goulburn-Murray Water, GOTAFE,  
	 La	Trobe	University	and	the	University		
 of Melbourne.

•	 Greater	Shepparton	is	known	as
 regional Victoria’s largest truck sales  
 and service centre and is recognised  
 as a major transport hub of  
 regional Australia.

•	 Greater	Shepparton	industries	are		
 exporting their products, technology  
 and expertise to markets all over  
 the world. 

•	 As	a	regional	hub,	Greater	Shepparton		
 businesses and organisations provide  
 a range of goods and services to  
 a catchment of approximately  
 160,000 people.

ouR 
EDuCAtion
•	 Greater	Shepparton’s	top-class 
 education facilities offer a high   
 standard of learning from primary  
 through to tertiary level. 

•	 The	Shepparton	region	boasts	26 
 primary schools and six secondary  
 colleges, with students able to  
 choose from government, Catholic  
 or private education. 

•	 Council’s	plan	to	develop	Shepparton		
	 as	a	“University	City”	is	well	on	its 
	 way	with	the	University	of	Melbourne’s		
 Shepparton and Dookie campuses and 
	 La	Trobe	University’s	Shepparton	campus		
 offering a range of courses and degrees. 
 The Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE  
 (GOTAFE) caters to many educational  
 and training needs at its two   
 Shepparton campuses and Victoria  
	 University	has	provided	a	number	of 
 courses in partnership with local   
 service providers.

ouR ARtS 
AnD EVEntS
•	 The	region	is	home	to	the	SheppARTon		
 Festival, the Moooving Art public art 
 display and the Shepparton Art 
 Museum, which houses one of 
 Australia’s leading ceramics collections  
 and hosts a major Australian Indigenous  
 art award.

•	 The	area	is	also	home	to	Kaiela	Gallery,		
 featuring emerging Indigenous artists.

•	 Greater	Shepparton	also	provides		
 sponsorship and in-kind support for 
 other major events including   
 International Dairy Week, the 
 Australasian Schools Cycling Cup,  
 the Australian National Piano Award  
 and the Spring Car Nationals.

tHE SCuLPtuRED SnAiLS WERE onE oF tHE FEAtuRE AttRACtionS At tHE SAm jinkS BoDy in timE 
ExHiBition At SHEPPARton ARt muSEum.
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EStimAtED RESiDEnt PoPuLAtion, City oF GREAtER SHEPPARton
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Source: Australian Bureau of Statistics, Regional Population Growth, Australia (3218.0). 
Compiled and presented by .id the population experts 

2011    CiTy Of GREATER ShEPPARTON REGiONAL viC  viCTORiA  AUSTRALiA  

mEdiAN AGE    38    41    37    37  

mEdiAN WEEkLy hOUSEhOLd iNCOmE    $980    $945    $1,216    $1,234  

COUPLES WiTh ChiLdREN    30%    27%    32%    31%  

OLdER COUPLES WiThOUT ChiLdREN    10%    11%    9%    9%  

mEdiUm ANd hiGh dENSiTy hOUSiNG    13%    11%    23%    25%  

hOUSEhOLdS WiTh A mORTGAGE    33%    32%    34%    33%  

mEdiAN mONThLy mORTGAGE REPAymENT  $1,300    $1,300    $1,700    $1,800  

mEdiAN WEEkLy RENT    $185    $190    $277    $285  

hOUSEhOLdS RENTiNG    28%    24%    26%    29%  

NON-ENGLiSh SPEAkiNG bACkGROUNdS  10%    6%    20%    16%  

UNivERSiTy ATTENdANCE    2%    2%    5%    4% 
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COUNCILLORS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
GAVIN CATOR
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• Assets
 - Strategic Asset 
  Management

• Finance and Rates
 - Financial Accounting
 - Rates and Valuations
 - Revenue

• Information Services
 - Eservices
 - GIS
 - Information 
  Technology
 - Records

• Property and 
 Procurement
 - Caravan Parks
 - Cemeteries
 - Contract 
  Administration
 - Contracts and
  Procurement
 - Leases
 - Saleyards

• Building 
 - Building Approvals
 - Building Enforcement

• Investment Attraction
 - Business Centre
 - Business and Industry  
  Development
 - Business and Industry  
  Promotion
 - Grants Facilitation and  
  Coordination
 - Shepparton Show Me

• Planning
 - Statutory Planning
 - Strategic Planning
 - Strategic Transport  
  Planning

• Strategic Waste
 - Landfill
 - Litter Bins
 - Street Collections
 - Transfer Stations

• Sustainability and  
 Environment
 - Animal Management
 - Environmental Health
 - Immunisation
 - Local Laws
 - Parking Enforcement
 - RiverConnect
 - Sustainability and  
  Development

• Communications and  
 Marketing
 - Communications
 - Customer Service
 - Marketing
 - Online Communications

• Corporate Performance
 - Audit Committee
 - Continuous Improvement
 - Councillor Conduct  
  Panels
 - Elections
 - Governance
 - Information Privacy
 - Internal Auditing
 - Risk Management
 - Section 86  
  Committees
 - Service Planning
 - Whistleblower

• People Performance
 - Human Resources
 - Learning Organisation
 - Occupational Health  
  and Safety
 - Payroll
 - WorkCover

• Fleet and Buildings
 - Asset Inspections
 - Building Maintenance
 - Plant and Fleet
 - Plant and Fleet  
  Maintenance
 - Store
 - Workshop
 
• Projects
 - Aerodrome Management
 - Capital Works Planning
 - Design Services
 - Development
 - Engineering

• Works, Parks
 - Parks Construction
 - Parks and Parks  
  Furniture Maintenance
 - Public Open Space
 - Recreation Planning
 - Showgrounds
 - Tree Maintenance

• Works, Roads
 - Road Construction
 - Roads and Road  
  Furniture Maintenance
 - Street Sweeping
 - Roads for Road  
  Surfacing

• Cultural Liveability
 - Events and Festivals
 - Library
 - Riverlinks
 - Shepparton Art  
  Museum
 - Tourism

• Neighbourhoods
 - Aged Services
 - Community  
  Engagement
 - Community Planning
 - Community Safety
 - Community  
  Strengthening
 - Disability Services
 - Emergency  
  Management
 - Multiicultural and  
  Aboriginal Relations
 - Social Planning

• Recreational Liveability
 - Aquamoves Centre
 - Aquatic Programs
 - KidsTown
 - Physical Activity  
  Programs
 - Stadiums

• Youth and Children  
 Services
 - Aquamoves Childcare
 - Early Childhood  
  Education Services
 - Family Day Care
 - Maternal and Child  
  Health

CR MICHAEL POLAN
(MAYOR) 

FIRST ELECTED 
2008

CR CHRIS HAZELMAN 
(DEPUTY MAYOR) 
FIRST ELECTED 

1997

CR GEOFF DOBSON
FIRST ELECTED 

2008

CR CHERIE CRAWFORD
FIRST ELECTED 

2008

CR JENNY HOULIHAN
FIRST ELECTED

2005

CR KEVIN RYAN
FIRST ELECTED 

2000

CR MILVAN MUTO
FIRST ELECTED 

2008

ouR oRGAniSAtion
AS At 30 junE 2012

A new structure was introduced on 14 June 2012 following an extensive organisational review.
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ouR 
ExECutiVE

CHiEF ExECutiVE oFFiCER
Gavin Cator
Gavin Cator has more than 20 years  
of senior management experience in  
local government.

Gavin has spent his entire working life in 
local government. Gavin holds a Bachelor  
of Civil Engineering and a Graduate 
Diploma in Municipal Engineering.

He has also served in sector leadership 
roles including as President of Local 
Government Professionals (LGPro) in 
Victoria and as a National Director of Local 
Government Managers Australia (LGMA). 
Gavin is also a graduate of the Australian 
Rural Leadership Program and has a 
passion for leadership development.

He has been heavily involved in  
Australian Rules Football. He is currently 
on the Goulburn Valley Football League 
Board and has previously been President 
of the Murray Football League and a 
Board Member of the Murray and  
Ovens Football Netball League.

ACtinG DiRECtoR BuSinESS
Dwight Graham
Dwight Graham started his employment 
at Greater Shepparton City Council in 
September 2008 after relocating from  
his homeland, New Zealand.

His previous roles include Chief Financial 
Officer at Speirs Group, a food and financing 
company, and the Finance Manager at 
Palmerston North City Council, both in  
New Zealand.

Prior to these roles Mr Graham was in the 
New Zealand Air Force for 21 years as an 
Avionics Engineer.

Mr Graham lives in south Shepparton with 
his wife and daughter, while another daughter 
attends	University	in	New	Zealand.	He	
coaches Congupna Netball A Grade team  
and keeps fit with early morning running  
and cycling.

Mr Graham is a Chartered Accountant 
whose qualifications include a Certificate 
in Engineering (Electronics & Computer 
Technology), a Bachelor of Business Studies 
(Accountancy) and a Master in Business 
Administration.

DiRECtoR Community
Julie Salomon
Julie Salomon began her role as 
the General Manager Community 
Development in May 2010.

Ms Solomon has had extensive 
experience in public sector human  
service provision, leadership, management, 
contemporary service planning and 
strategic policy development within local 
and state government environments.

Prior to Greater Shepparton City  
Council, she was the Manager Family and 
Children’s Services at the City of Yarra for 
two and a half years and before that held 
positions with Banyule City Council and 
the Department of Human Services in  
the Family and Children’s Services area.

Ms Solomon has a strong commitment to 
social justice and energising communities 
to become involved and participate in 
planning for local areas and services to 
move towards a more sustainable future 
for everyone. Ms Solomon is married and 
has a young daughter who attends school 
in Shepparton.

Her qualifications include Diploma of 
Teaching (Early Childhood), Graduate 
Diploma in Special Education, Graduate 
Certificate of Applied Business and Graduate 
Certificate in Ontological Coaching.
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ACtinG DiRECtoR inFRAStRuCtuRE
Peter Harriott
Peter Harriott has more than 20 years 
experience in local government, starting 
as a graduate engineer in Warrnambool 
in 1985.

He secured promotions in his field of 
engineering at a number of rural councils 
prior to his appointment in 2000 at 
the Greater Shepparton City Council 
where he started as the Director of 
Development and Infrastructure.

Peter’s qualifications include a Bachelor 
of Engineering (Civil), Municipal Engineer’s 
Certificate, Water Engineer’s Certificate, 
Graduate Certificate in Water Engineering, 
Municipal Building Surveyor and a Master 
of Business Administration.

 

ACtinG DiRECtoR oRGAniSAtion
Merv Hair
Merv has more than 40 years experience 
in local and state government authorities 
at a senior management level. He has 
formal qualifications in Business Studies 
- Local Government and is a qualified 
Municipal Clerk. 

Merv has broad experience and 
understanding in many areas including 
corporate governance, strategic planning, 
organisational development, continuous 
improvement, business planning, policy 
development, risk management, financial 
management and reporting, enterprise 
bargaining, internal audit frameworks  
and regional library services. 

DiRECtoR SuStAinABLE 
DEVELoPmEnt
Dean Rochfort
Dean Rochfort holds a Bachelor of 
Business (Economics & Finance) from the 
Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology 
and an Executive Masters in Business 
Administration through the Melbourne 
Business School.

Before taking up his current position 
in August 2009, Dean held the role 
of Director - Corporate and Economic 
Development from November 2004.

He also spent a year as the 
Organisational Development Manager 
with Mitchell Shire following two 
years as Mitchell Shire’s Tourism and 
Economic Development Manager. Prior 
to his move to local government, Mr 
Rochfort had private sector experience 
in the Information Technology, Natural 
Resources and Transport industries.

Dean	is	a	Director	of	the	United	Way	
Goulburn Valley Community Fund.
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oRGAniSAtionAL VALuES
Greater Shepparton City Council is a 
values-driven organisation. Our values are: 

Leadership 
I will set an example that encourages 
others to strive for positive community 
outcomes to the best of our ability.

Integrity
I will be honest and ethically upright  
– I am my word.

Respect
I will show consideration and 
appreciation of others and seek to 
understand their point of view.

Innovation
I will think outside the square, challenge 
the status quo and seek continuous 
improvement through the application  
of new ideas and work methods.

Teamwork
I will build the understanding that we  
all work for the one organisation.

yEARS oF SERViCE
The second annual Years of Service and  
Service Excellence Awards are held  
in November 2011.

Years of Service awards are provided  
for staff who reached their five, 10,  
15, 20 and 25 years of service in the  
2011 calendar year. 

Awards were presented to 27 people 
for reaching the five year milestone, 29 
people for 10 years, 10 people for 15 
years, five people for 20 years and five 
people for 25 years. Special awards were 
also presented to six staff for 30+, 35+ 
and 40+ years of service.

SERViCE ExCELLEnCE
As well as years of service, Greater 
Shepparton City Council staff were 
recognised for outstanding service 
excellence in four categories reflecting 
Council’s values and business  
excellence commitment.

There are four categories in the  
Service Excellence Awards: 

•	 Living	the	Values

•	 Above	and	Beyond	

•	 Customer	Experience	

•	 Operations	Excellence

Staff can make nominations throughout 
the year for colleagues they believe  
have demonstrated high levels of  
service excellence. 

Nominees receive a certificate at staff 
meetings throughout the year and 
are then in the running for the Overall 
Service Excellence Awards which 
are presented at the Reward and 
Recognition Ceremony.

There were 26 nominations across  
the four excellence categories.

LIvInG THe vaLueS
Chris Widdicombe, Maternal  
and Child Health 
Chris has helped oversee the challenging 
transition of the Maternal Child Health 
Service from Goulburn Valley Health  
to Council. 
 
CuSToMeR SeRvICe
Greg Sidebottom, Kristie Welch  
and Liz adams  
Greg, Kristie and Liz received the 
award for Customer Service. The three 
were asked by the Customer Service, 
Innovation and Systems Integration 
Cross-Functional Working Group  
to conduct an internal customer  
service survey. 
 
above anD beyonD
Paul Dainton, victoria Park Lake 
Paul demonstrated exceptional 
performance and commitment with the 
planting of the flora around and in the 
wetlands at Victoria Park Lake. 
 
oPeRaTIonS exCeLLenCe 
arthur Dickmann Childcare Centre
The Arthur Dickmann Childcare Centre 
received the award for Operations 
Excellence. The Childcare Centre 
received outstanding results in the 
National Childcare Accreditation Council 
audit. Staff worked to build on the quality 
of their programs between audits which 
resulted in them achieving the highest 
possible results across all areas.

ouR  
AWARDS

ouR
VALuES

GREAtER SHEPPARton City CounCiL StAFF WERE RECoGniSED FoR outStAnDinG SERViCE ExCELLEnCE.
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inDuStRy RECoGnition
Sir Rupert Hamer Records 
Management awards 
The Sir Rupert Hamer Records 
Management Awards recognise 
achievements in good records 
management practice within Victorian 
government agencies and local 
community archives. 

Greater Shepparton City Council and 
the Shepparton Family History group 
received an award for using digital 
technology to preserve the rates books 
from the former Shire of Rodney.

Council also received an award for ‘Going 
Digital With Financial Information’ for a 
project to digitise incoming invoices and 
streamline business practice to improve 
efficiency and accessibility as well as 
saving paper and reducing Council’s 
environmental footprint. 

Institute of Public Works engineers 
australia (IPWea), victoria awards for 
excellence, Innovation/Service  
Delivery award
The Infrastructure Design Group 
developed an Infrastructure Design 
Manual. The group represents 
32 councils across Victoria and is 
spearheaded by Greater Shepparton  
City Council.

The group developed a common 
Infrastructure Design Manual (IDM) for 
use by local government and stakeholders 
to develop more consistent design 
requirements and encourage sharing  
of leading edge ideas and practices.

other recognition
•	 The	Victoria	Park	Lake	redevelopment		
 was one of 20 projects shortlisted  
 for the IPWEA Victoria Awards for  
 Excellence in the Projects over  
 $3 million category. 
 
•	 Greater	Shepparton	City	Council’s		
 Family Day Care Service was one  
 of three finalists shortlisted for   

 the Australian Family Early Education 
 and Care Awards in the Early Childhood  
 Service Provider of the Year category.

•	 The	North	East	Regional	Development		
 Scheme received an award for regional  
 collaboration at the National Awards  
 for Local Government. Indigo Shire  
 Council administers the online training  
 portal for members across north east  
 Victoria including Greater Shepparton  
 City Council. 

•	 The	Crouching	Emu	Revegetation		
 Project was a finalist in the annual  
 Keep Australia Beautiful Awards 
  – Community Government  
 Partnership category.

•	 The	Greater	Shepparton	Business		
 Centre was nominated for the annual 
 Regional  Achievement and Community 
 Awards – Business Achievement.

•	 Greater	Shepparton	on	the	Moove,	 
 incorporating the twilight strolls,   
 pedometer challenge and walking 
  path networks was a finalist in   
 the 2011 Regional Achievement   
 and Community Awards - Healthy  
 Participation.

•	 KidsTown	was	a	finalist	in	the	annual		
 Powercor 95.3SR FM Business and  
 Services Tourism Excellence Award.

•	 Donna	Rodda	who	primarily	works	at	the		
 Shepparton Sports Stadium was a   
 shortlisted finalist for the Aquatics and  
 Recreation Victoria Group Exercise   
 Instructor of the Year Award. This was an 
 especially significant achievement as the 
 nominations were the highest in the  
 history of the award with more than 50 
 nominations from across Victoria. Donna  
 was recognised for her experience and  
 expertise in developing and delivering  
 high quality programming for older adults  
 and people with special needs by creating  
 a welcoming, vibrant environment that 
 facilitates improved health and lifestyle  
 outcomes for her participants.

•	 The	2010/11	Annual	Report	was		 	
 shortlisted for the 2012 MAV Annual  
 Report Awards.

LEARninG AnD DEVELoPmEnt
Council also provides a range of learning 
and development opportunities for staff 
with a focus on continuous improvement 
and business excellence. Highlights from 
2011/12 include:

•	 Staff	participation	and	support	for	the		
 Fairley Leadership Program, a regional  
 leadership development program.

•	 More	than	20	staff	took	part	in	an 
 accelerated Diploma of Management  
 with sessions hosted by Victoria   
	 University	in	Shepparton.

•	 A	12-week	Mentor	Program	was 
 provided matching mentors and 
 mentees and providing support   
 with training, resources and  
 support throughout. 

•	 Ongoing	support	and	training		 	
 through Council’s Business Excellence  
 Continuous Improvement program.

•	 Online	learning	modules	introduced		
 for inductions and other corporate  
 training.

•	 Council	conducted	its	second		 	
 organisational climate survey in early  
 2012. The survey results were used  
 as part of the organisational review. 

•	 Streamlining	training,	development		
 and performance management   
 initiatives with a view to developing  
 a corporate training program with a 
  focus on core skill requirements   
 of staff in key positions across  
 the organisation.

tHE DEDiCAtion AnD ContRiBution oF ouR LonG SERVinG CounCiL StAFF 
iS REmARkABLE AnD tHE AWARDS PRoViDE A GREAt oCCASion to SHoW 
ouR APPRECiAtion, CELEBRAtE tHESE miLEStonES AnD HiGHLiGHt tHE 
BESt ExAmPLES oF SERViCE ExCELLEnCE FRom tHE PASt yEAR  
– ACtinG CEo, juLiE SALomon SPEAkinG At tHE AWARD CEREmony in noVEmBER 2011.

“
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Council is committed to the principles  
of equal opportunity and has an  
Equal Opportunity Policy to formalise  
this commitment.

The policy reflects Council’s desire to 
provide and enjoy a workplace free of 
discrimination, victimisation, vilification 
and harassment where each person has 
the opportunity to progress to the extent 
of their ability.

It states that:
In all policies and practices of the 
Council there shall be no discrimination 
relating to sex, marital status, pregnancy, 
parental status, race, national or 
ethnic origin, disability, religious or 
political affiliation or union activity, or 
any other attribute covered in relevant 
State and Federal anti-discrimination 
legislation, and which is irrelevant to the 
person’s ability to perform the inherent 
requirements of their job.

Selection of individuals for employment, 
promotion or advancement, training and 
staff development, will be on the basis 
of merit in fair and open competition 
according to the skills, qualifications, 
experience, knowledge and efficiency 
relevant to the position or benefit 
involved.

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and 
Responsibilities Act 2006 aims to protect 
human rights of all people in Victoria by 
requiring that government and other public 
authorities observe these rights when 
making decisions, creating laws, setting 
policies and providing services.

Greater Shepparton City Council is 
committed to the principles in the charter 
and is developing a Human Rights Policy 
and training program.

Ongoing training and information about 
equal opportunity and human rights 
is provided as part of Council’s formal 
induction program for employees 
including a focus on Council’s 
commitment to the principles of 
the LEAD (Localities Embracing and 
Accepting Diversity) program.

Council’s Enterprise Bargaining 
Agreement also reflects a range of family 
friendly benefits and flexible working 
arrangements acknowledging our 
commitment to being a family friendly 
workplace. 

EquAL oPPoRtunity 
AnD HumAn RiGHtS

OCCUPATiON TyPE (fULL TimE ANd PART TimE STAff) 

 mALE fEmALE TOTAL

CEO  1  -  1

ExEC mANAGERS  4  1  5

mANAGERS  14  8  22

TEChNiCAL  44  25  69

LAbOURERS  116  3  119

AdmiNiSTRATiON  53  163  216

ChiLdRENS SERviCES  0  108  108

TOTAL  232  308  540

bASiS Of EmPLOymENT (fULL ANd PART TimE)

 mALE fEmALE TOTAL

fULL TimE 216  137  353

PART TimE 16  171  187

TOTAL 232  308  540

bASiS Of EmPLOymENT (EfT iNCLUdiNG CASUAL hOURS)

 mALE fEmALE TOTAL

fULL TimE 215.87 137  352.87

PART TimE 7.45 97.47 104.92

TOTAL 223.32 234.47 457.79

CASUAL 5.91 19.83 25.74

TOTAL iNCLUdiNG CASUAL EfT 229.23 254.3 483.53

Please note, these figures are different to the ones used in the draft 2012/13 
budget as  further conversion of casual staff to permanent part time positions  
has occurred.

EquAL oPPoRtunity StAtiStiCS 
As at 30 June 2012, Council had 540 full time and part time staff (457.79 equivalent 
full time). Council also had a number of casual staff contributing hours worth 
approximately 25.74 equivalent full time roles per week.
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ABoRiGinAL StuDEntS DAnCED 
AnD SPokE At A PuBLiC SoRRy DAy 
CommEmoRAtion CEREmony in monASH 
PARk, SHEPPARton, on monDAy 28 mAy.

“
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A SUmmARy Of SOmE Of ThE mAjOR iNiTiATivES, 
PROjECTS, EvENTS, STRATEGiES, miLESTONES 
ANd SERviCE hiGhLiGhTS dURiNG 2011/12.

03
oPERAtinG  
REPoRt
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oPERAtinG REPoRt
CounCiL PLAn PERFoRmAnCE
Greater Shepparton City Council’s vision is for a greater future for the municipality as the Food Bowl of Australia and a sustainable, innovative 
and diverse community.

This vision is the cornerstone of the four-year Council Plan which was developed with input from more than 600 people in 2009  
to guide Council’s strategic direction and budget planning through to 2013.

The Plan commits Council to 35 core focuses and 130 specific actions around six themes to help support the vision for the  
Greater Shepparton municipality.

Each year, Council’s Work Plans and Budget are set against the backdrop of the priorities identified in the Council Plan.

The following is a report of the status of actions in the four year plan as well as some highlights from Year Three (2011/12)  
of the four year plan. The audited Performance Statement also provides a summary of performance against some of the  
key strategic activities identified at the start of 2011/12.

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

1. SEttLEmEnt AnD HouSinG
A commitment to growth within a consolidated and sustainable development framework.

Encourage innovative, appropriate, sustainable and affordable 
housing solutions. 

 
Encourage sustainable municipal growth and development.

Revitalise and promote the Shepparton Cbd as the region’s  
premier retail and entertainment destination.

This is being progressed through implementation of the  
Greater Shepparton housing Strategy. Actions include successful  
grant application for building better Regional Cities funding for  
the provision of more affordable housing in mooroopna West,  
and provision of a diverse and accessible housing within the  
Shepparton North East Growth Corridor. n

Actively participated in promoting the region through the Regional  
victoria Living Expo. n

vaughan Street design complete. n

bus interchange and maude Street concept design work underway. n

Ongoing development of Shepparton Show me promotional program. n

Summer and Winter City markets held. n

Cbd Strategy implementation underway. n

Safer City Strategy implementation underway. n

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS
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SomE oF tHE EntERtAinERS At tHE 10tH BiRtHDAy  
CELEBRAtionS FoR tHE moooVinG ARt CoW HERD.
“
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oPERAtinG REPoRt
2. Community LiFE
To enhance social connectedness, physical and mental health and well being, education and  
participatory opportunities in order to improve liveability and a greater range of community services.

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

Redevelop the victoria Park precinct.

Redevelop Aquamoves as a regional community aquatic facility.

Embrace and strengthen cultural harmony and diversity.

Provide a safe and family friendly community.

increase education and learning opportunities for our community.

develop and pursue strategies to improve community  
health and wellbeing.

This project has been substantially completed with the major infrastructure  
work finished allowing water to be returned and a range of recreational  
activity to take place on the lake and in the surrounding area. √

The Leisure Pool and Splash Park have been completed. √

Grant funding to progress car parking not available. n

Aboriginal Partnerships Officer employed and actively engaging with the  
community. further strategic work on an Aboriginal Partnership plan to 
be developed. n

Cultural diversity Strategy adopted march 2012. √

Council activities continue to support cultural harmony and inclusiveness,  
eg the Emerge festival, harmony day, Refugee Week, Reconciliation Week,  
Sorry day and NAidOC Week. √

LEAd (Localities Embracing and Accepting diversity)  
Council developed and implemented a Council Action Plan focused on ensuring policies and  
procedures are welcoming and inclusive of all cultures. LEAd rolled out equal opportunity and  
pro diversity training to Council staff, six schools and businesses in the region, and began work with  
two local sporting clubs. LEAd will continue to work with these organisations until September  
2013 with the aim to reduce race based discrimination and increase positive diversity.  n

The Safer City Strategy was adopted the previous year and actions to progress  
this continue apace. This includes securing funding for the implementation of  
a closed circuit television system in the Shepparton Central business district. √

developed municipal fire management Plan. n

implemented actions and activated a leadership group arising from Tertiary  
Education Strategy. n

Continue to lobby other tiers of government for regional trades regeneration,  
funding for educational infrastructure and the development of the University  
of melbourne’s dookie campus into a 21st century research and education centre. n

The Positive Ageing Strategy is now into its third year and the action plan  
continues to be implemented. √

The Emergency management Plan has been reviewed twice yearly and  
funding has been secured for dedicated emergency management positions. √

The municipal Early years Plan has been completed and the draft of the  
new plan was approved for public consultation. √

The highest standards of accessibility and inclusion have been sought, with  
a dedicated access and inclusion officer engaged to support activities across  
Council, in addition to the disability Advisory Committee providing strategic  
advice on all major undertakings. √

youth engagement opportunities have continued, with the adoption of the  
youth safety report and youth action plan during the year. √

Support has been provided to increase the quality of Aboriginal health outcomes  
with Council’s ongoing support of the strategic work being undertaken by the  
kaiela institute and in particular the social inclusion project. √

Significant work has been undertaken on developing a Universal Access Plan,  
with a very active disability Advisory Committee working closely with Council  
on a range of key projects. n

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved
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oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

develop a range of active and passive recreational facilities at the 
former kialla landfill site.

Ensure social issues are actively considered when making  
planning decisions.

develop and promote local community sporting facilities.

develop and promote the Shepparton Sports Precinct as  
a significant regional victorian multi-sport complex.

develop the Shepparton Showgrounds in accordance with  
the master Plan.

Provide affordable and sustainable community services.

value arts and culture as an integral part of a dynamic community.

The kialla Landfill site has undergone a major rehabilitation and the major  
construction tasks of capping and stabilisation of banks has been completed.  
Access to the site has been improved by the construction of paths and a  
viewing platform allows for views of the entire site, surrounding areas and  
as far as the Strathbogie Ranges. √

This is being progressed through implementation of the Greater Shepparton  
housing Strategy, and input on relevant planning permit applications. n

This is being progressed through provision of local active open space facilities  
within the Shepparton North East and South East Growth Corridors. A range of  
facilities continue to be provided on an annual basis across the whole municipality. n

The Shepparton Sports Precinct has seen improvements in signage, car parking and  
fencing. major redevelopment has related to the provision of premier soccer facilities. √ 

Works have continued at the Shepparton Showgrounds with the official opening of  
the impressive multi-purpose pavilion, completion of the retardation drainage works  
and landscaping.  future works will include the completion of the grassed arena,  
promenades and amenities for the multipurpose Pavilion. n

Services to seniors have been reviewed and continue to be delivered. Ongoing  
funding concerns from the State and Commonwealth Government will require  
reviewing our activity annually in line with a low level of grant indexations. √

The level of children’s services remain high, with occasional care services still  
being provided after funding was withdrawn. A new Council operated kindergarten  
was opened this year in conjunction with the department of Education and Early  
Childhood development – the Arthur mawson kindergarten. √

A broad range of arts events continue to be held across Greater Shepparton,  
including; the SheppARTon festival, the Sidney myer international Ceramic Award,  
the indigenous Ceramic Award, the Australian National Piano Award and this year,   
the Emerge festival was added to the portfolio of key events. √

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

SHEPPARton’S CBD PLAyS A kEy PARt in Community LiFE.



34

3. EnViRonmEnt
To conserve and enhance our significant natural environments and cultural heritage.

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

Promote and demonstrate environmental sustainability.

oPERAtinG REPoRt
√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

The development of a Sustainability and Environmental Strategy is progressing  
well. This strategy will determine the future focus of Council’s efforts in this area. n

The Crouching Emu Revegetation Project in Tatura was nominated for two  
Tidy Towns - Sustainable Communities Awards and was a State finalist in the 
Community-Government Partnership category.  n

Council’s partnership with the dookie biolinks Project continues to implement  
the priority actions in the dookie biodiversity Action Plan (bAP) including  
roadside woody weed removal to help change the landscape to provide  
connected habitat and boost resilience within the district’s biodiversity assets.  n

As part of Council’s indigenous flora Revegetation Program, planting equipment  
and 10,000 indigenous plants were provided to Landcare groups and schools. n

The roadside weed control program continues with funding received from  
both the State and federal Governments with a focus on noxious weed species  
listed as Regionally Controlled or Weeds of National Significance. This included  
42.8km of Chilean needle grass (Nassella neesiana) along rural roadsides.  n

Council contributed towards the costs of operating and maintaining the  
Public Salinity Control Assets implemented under the Shepparton irrigation  
Region Catchment implementation Strategy. n

Council has continued to have monitoring reports produced on our energy  
usage and CO2 emissions. This data is used to support and encourage managers  
to improve their branch’s environmental and financial performances. Energy  
audits were also conducted at three Council facilities and key actions have  
been identified for improvement. n

Council continued its membership with the iCLEi Cities for Climate Protection  
(CCP) Plus Program and the iCLEi Water Campaign. These programs assist with  
our usage reduction targets. n

Council is a member of the Northern Region Water monitoring Partnership  
program which monitors water quality and quantity in the region. Council is  
responsible for the maintenance of a number of monitoring sites.  n

Council has completed the Gemmill’s Swamp bioremediation Wetland to  
significantly improve the quality of water flowing from the mooroopna  
township into Gemmill’s Swamp.  n

Actions have continued to be implemented from the domestic Wastewater  
management Plan (2008), Sensitive Water Use Plan (2007) and the Greater  
Shepparton Stormwater management Plan (Review 2009).  n

Greater Shepparton (in partnership with neighbouring councils and the GbCmA  
and Goulburn valley Water) employs a Stormwater Education Officer to address 
stormwater issues regionally with a major focus on schools and the building industry.  n

Council and the GbCmA have worked in partnership to install a Gross Pollutant Trap  
on knight Street to minimise the amount of rubbish entering the Goulburn River. n

Council is a foundation member and contributes towards the Goulburn broken 
Greenhouse Alliance (GbGA). n

Greater Shepparton, moira Shire, Campaspe Shire and the GbCmA employ a municipal  
Catchment Coordinator to address planning and environmental issues regionally. n

Council commissioned a Sustainable Community Strategy (funded through the  
federal Government’s Strengthening basin Communities Program) focusing on  
the impacts of climate change and reduced water availability.  n
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oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

identify and respect our significant cultural and  
environmental assets.

Enhance the community’s use and appreciation of the Goulburn  
and broken rivers.

The development of the Environmental and Sustainability Strategy is  
progressing. The strategy will assist in identifying and respecting significant 
environmental assets and will compliment other environmental and  
sustainability plans and strategies. n

The Regional Rural Land Use Strategy includes a series of recommendations  
including the appropriate recognition and protection for areas of  
environmental significance. n

Council has continued to implement actions contained in the Roadside  
management Plan (2008) and the Strategic framework for managing Native  
vegetation on Road Reserves (2009). These documents provide mechanisms  
to protect and enhance remaining areas of native vegetation on Council  
managed land and guides strategic development of linkages between  
fragmented patches of remnant vegetation. n

Greater Shepparton City Council offers a rate rebate to landholders with  
a Trust for Nature conservation covenant.  n

Council provides a financial contribution towards the GbCmA Cultural  
heritage Officer and receives services such as the development of Cultural  
heritage management Plans in return. n

The RiverConnect Program is a very successful program that enhances the  
community’s use and appreciation of the rivers and has widespread support  
from indigenous groups, local schools, other agencies and the community  
in general.

it is expected that this program will continue to achieve good results into  
the future. √

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

tHE REGion iS HomE to tHE moooVinG ARt PuBLiC ARt DiSPLAy.
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oPERAtinG REPoRt
4. EConomiC DEVELoPmEnt
To promote economic growth, business development and diversification, with a focus on  
strengthening the agricultural industry.

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

Shepparton Art museum (SAm) has attracted unprecedented numbers since the  
launch in february from locals and visitors alike (approximately 25% of all  
visitors are from outside Greater Shepparton). √

Council is continuing to focus on positioning the region as a family friendly  
destination, supporting kidsTown and the annual kidsfest which continues  
to attract intrastate and interstate visitation.

Greater Shepparton continues to earn a reputation as an events destination with  
a diverse annual events calendar being a strong driver of visitation to the region. 

The focus on the social, economic and brand return encouraging increased flow  
on benefit to the community.  Council has supported a wide range of community,  
sporting and business events and festivals throughout the year including: 
• SheppARTon festival
• Carols by Candlelight
• New years Eve festival  in mooroopna
• Australia day
• Summer film festival
• Spring Car Nationals
• Southern Seven Cutting horses
• international diary Week
• Shepparton Show
• Under 19 Cycling 
• Australasian Schools Cycling Cup
• 70.3 Triathlon
• kidsfest
• victorian Open bowls
• Greater Shepparton basketball Association junior Tournament

it is estimated that these events have delivered an estimated $50 million in  
economic impact to the Greater Shepparton community. n

The visitor information Centre has serviced nearly 40,000 visitor enquiries and  
continues to be a major source of information and referrals. n

Continued support of Gv bRaiN business networking events.  n

Coordination of Summer and Winter City markets. n

The design of Stage 1 is complete and ready to go once investment interest is  
realised. Completion of the detailed design for Stages 2 and 3 and functional design  
for Stages 4, 5 and 6 is close to completion also. n

Regional Rural Land Use Strategy adopted by Council following independent  
planning panel. n

draft adoption action plan for A future With Less Water completed and currently  
open for public comment (as at 30 june 2012). n

individual and group submission to draft murray darling basin Plan. n

Continue to support and expand research and development programs that educate, support  
and assist our community to grow and adapt to changing environmental conditions. n

investor prospectus completed. n

Greater Shepparton business Centre incubator and business growth/training service.  n

Economic and tourism attraction attributes of Greater Shepparton were promoted through the 
maintenance and publishing of statistical information and marketing material, via the distribution of  
the Live Work invest Prospectus, the investment Prospectus and the monthly eNews newsletter. n

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

develop a mix of sustainable tourist attractions, festivals and events.

Establish the Goulburn valley freight Logistics Centre to improve the 
efficiencies and competitiveness of regional business.

develop and pursue strategies to protect and enhance our irrigation 
based agricultural economy.

Pursue opportunities to increase the range of businesses and industries 
in the region, to further strengthen our economy.

Ensure a coordinated and effective approach to economic and tourism 
development is maintained at all times.
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5. inFRAStRuCtuRE
To provide urban and rural infrastructure to enhance the performance of the municipality  
and facilitate growth.

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

Pursue construction of the Shepparton bypass and
second river crossing on the Goulburn valley highway.

Pursue duplication of major highway entrances to
Shepparton and mooroopna.

Undertake beautification works for the main streets
and entrances to urban areas and townships.

Provide affordable and sustainable community infrastructure.

Pursue the “foodbowl Alignment” as the preferred melbourne 
to brisbane inland rail route.

The Shepparton bypass Action Group has been formed and approaches to  
various ministers and bureaucrats have been made. Assistance has been  
provided to vicRoads to allow a submission for funding to be made to the  
next round of the Nation building Program. n

An announcement has been made in relation to the funding of the eastern  
entrance to Shepparton and works are anticipated to commence in 2013.  
mooroopna will be done in conjunction with the Shepparton bypass works.  n

A range of works have been undertaken including major works on the  
southern entrance to Shepparton. √

infrastructure projects are required to consider sustainable and  
environmental aspects in the course of project development. n

Continued advocacy for inland rail route. n

oBjECtiVE outComE StAtuS

6. CounCiL oRGAniSAtion AnD mAnAGEmEnt
To deliver best practice management, governance, administrative and financial systems that support the delivery of Council programs  
to the community of Greater Shepparton.

Council’s long term financial model is reviewed annually. further work,  
including a review of the Rating Strategy, will occur in 2012/13. n

Council held more than 40 consultations throughout 2011/12 ranging from 
neighbourhood level to broader community and special interest group topics, as  
well as input to major advocacy campaigns such as the murray darling basin Plan. n 

Council hosted many ministerial visits including the victorian Premier,  
Ted baillieu. Council also sent many delegations to Canberra and melbourne  
to represent the region’s interests on a number of issues and committees. n

Organisational scan completed. Transitional management plan to be  
adopted by Council. Recruitment of new positions underway. n

Strategic Resource Plan updated. New Council Plan process approved.  
Greater Shepparton Greater future advocacy document adopted. n

Under review with transitional management process. n

√ Target achieved

n Progressing to achieve target

x not achieved

Review the Council’s financial model for long term sustainability.

Engage our community when making decisions.

develop strong partnerships with the State and federal governments.

Pursue organisational development and improvement.

Ensure our long term strategic vision for Greater
Shepparton remains relevant and accurate.

Provide best practice management and administrative systems and 
structures to support the delivery of Council services and programs.
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Greater Shepparton City Council is very 
appreciative of the considerable volunteer 
support that is provided by community 
members for a range of community 
services, facilities and initiatives. 

Council is also grateful for the support 
that volunteers provide directly to council 
services including the arts museum, 
events, KidsTown, leisure facilities, 
meals on wheels, planned activity 
groups, revegetation activities, Riverlinks, 
RiverConnect, safety programs, tourism 
and graffiti removal as well as the 
many community action plan groups, 
committees of management and advisory 
committees that work closely with 
Council to help provide services that 
otherwise would be unsustainable. 
 

VoLuntEER RECoGnition AWARDS
The third annual Greater Shepparton 
Volunteer Recognition Awards were 
presented in May 2012 as part of 
National Volunteer Week. This year, 
a seventh category was introduced 
as a way to recognise the hard work 
of emergency volunteers during the 
February/March floods.

Female volunteer – aunty valda Doody 
Aunty Valda Doody is an active and 
respected Elder within the local 
Aboriginal Community. Her role with the 
Koori Offender Support and Mentoring 
Program helps individuals and families 
to be healthier and happier and to create 
stronger community connections. 

Aunty Valda assists Aboriginal women 
to explore opportunities for engaging in 
positive life choices, shares her cultural 
knowledge and experience and has the 
ability to deal with the complex situations 
and behaviours.

Male volunteer – Murray yates 
Murray Yates continuously makes a 
significant contribution to his community. 
As well as having involvement in 
sporting, fire brigade and the local 
Lions club, he singlehandedly organised 
truckloads of hay for flood affected 
areas in 2011. His motivation and can do 
attitude shows his community that he is 
a dedicated, passionate and loyal leader. 
His commitment has brought much relief 
to his community and those around him.

Female youth volunteer  
– Chelsea Harrington 
Chelsea Harrington is currently studying in 
Bendigo but regularly travels to Shepparton 
to work on the 3630 Festival. As a role model 
to those around her, Chelsea tries to teach 
others to care for their community and each 
and every person in it. Working alongside  
her peers, her love and commitment  
inspires all around her to continue to  
have a youth focus in Shepparton.

Male youth volunteer  
– George Wagenknecht
George Wagenknecht has enabled the 
Shepparton South Community House to 
reach a wide community. His assistance 
and creativity has enabled the House 
to have their computer systems and 
website in place and is committed to 
dedicating his time to the Community 
House and his community.

Rural volunteer - barbara Philp
At 90 years of age, Barbara is very active 
in her community and is a great role 
model, particularly for young people. She 
has put in tireless hours of volunteer work 
across many organisations since 1946 and 
is still an active contributor today. 

volunteer Team – Community accessibility 
Community Accessibility has allowed 
Greater Shepparton community 
members to attend doctors and 
specialists outside of the municipality. 
Community Accessibility provides 
volunteer drivers for frail/aged people and 
people with disabilities to attend cancer 
treatments, operations, physiotherapy 
and specialists visits. Numerous trips to 
Melbourne, Albury/Wodonga, Bendigo, 
Benalla and Echuca have made a positive 
difference in their lives and their families.

emergency volunteer 
– Shepparton Search and Rescue 
Shepparton Search and Rescue is a self-
funded volunteer organisation and one 
of only two independent rescue squads 
in Victoria doing road rescue. The squad 
started in 1972, celebrating their 40th 
Anniversary this year. 

In the last 40 years, Shepparton Search 
and Rescue has attended many serious 
and life threatening incidents in the 
area, including major flooding; wind and 
storm damage; as well as river, dam 
and channel searches. This can be very 
difficult knowing that the community 
members that they are working for are 
often involved in these incidents. 

GREAtER SHEPPARton  
AuStRALiA DAy AWARDS 
Greater Shepparton City Council hosts 
Australia Day celebrations across the 
municipality. Australia Day awards are 
presented to citizens in recognition 
of their outstanding contribution to 
their local community and the Greater 
Shepparton community.

Greater Shepparton australia Day 
Citizen of the year – allan (Tom) Perry
Allan (Tom) Perry is a successful 
agriculturist and a respected and 
committed community member.

Mr Perry is a past Rodney Shire 
Councillor and also a past director, 
chairperson and member of Tatura Milk 
Industries. He is also a member of the 
National Farmers Federation and the 
Australian Dairy Corporation.

As a practising dairy farmer his 
commitment to the dairy industry is 
reflected in the many organisations that 
he is or has been involved with.

His dedication to the Tatura Victory  
Hall has seen the establishment of 
Blue Light Discos for the youth. He also 
assists with running the annual Tatura 
Rotary Art Show and was instrumental  
in starting up the ‘Men’s Shed’ in Tatura.

His personal commitment to the  
Victory Hall ensures that it is always  
well presented for the Tatura community 
to use.

His leadership, involvement and 
commitment is of great value to Tatura 
and its community and he is a respected 
Australian citizen.

Community
REPoRt
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Greater Shepparton australia Day 
young Citizen of the year – Jamie Lea
Jamie Lea has been involved in the 
youth, music and arts scenes in Greater 
Shepparton for a number of years. 
Jamie is recognised for her talent 
in music and performing arts and 
commitment to community and  
youth development.

Jamie shows an exceptional 
commitment and dedication to the 
community of Greater Shepparton  
as a member on numerous boards  
and committees.

As a 15-year-old she was founding 
member of youth organisation, Word 
and Mouth and many years later still 
remains committed to the organisation 
as Director of the Board.

Jamie is a past board member of The 
Bridge	Youth	Services	and	United	Way	
Goulburn Valley Community Fund.
She is an outstanding role model and 
mentor for the young people of Greater 
Shepparton and always gives 100 per 
cent effort.

She gives her time and energy towards 
making Greater Shepparton a vibrant  
and responsive community.

LoCAL AuStRALiA DAy AWARDS
Council also supports local Australia Day 
committees with their annual awards and 
events in Arcadia, Dookie, Mooroopna, 
Murchison, Shepparton, Tatura and Toolamba

arcadia
Citizen of the Year - Gerald Quirk

Dookie
Citizen of the Year - Don Bryant  
Young Citizen of the Year  
- Cameron Shields

Mooroopna
Citizen of the Year - John Kiss Mooroopna 
Australia Day  
 
Young Citizen of Year - Jamie Lea

Murchison
Citizen of the Year - Gloria Polkinghorn
 
Young Citizen of Year - Thomas Karacsay
 
Junior Sports Award - Kiara Catania
 
Club/Service Organisation Award  
- St Brigids Catholic Ladies Guild
 
Education Award - Peter Campbell 

Shepparton
Citizen of the Year - John Head

Young Citizens of Year - Fatima Zaoli  
and Elaf Al-Tuhmazy

Senior Citizen Award - Russell Broom

Academic Award - Arlene Austin

Sports Award - James Marx

Tatura and District 
Citizen of the Year - Allan (Tom) Perry

Young Citizen of the Year - Jason Archer

Sports Award - Lisa Cullum

Business Award - Luisa Niglia

Environment Award - Greg Smith

Academic Award - Adrian Crossley

Volunteer Service Award - James Pyke

Toolamba
Citizen of the Year - Caroline  
James-Wilson

Community Service Award  
- Heather Kennedy
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Community PLAnS
Greater Shepparton City Council has 
been working with community plan 
groups across the municipality to support 
the development of Community Plans  
for small towns. 

A Community Plan is a written document 
which identifies a community’s vision 
for the future and the priorities it 
has identified to achieve the vision. 
The Community Plan belongs to the 
community and the aim is to reflect the 
current situation in a community while 
identifying short, medium and long  
term goals. 

While the plans are endorsed by Council, 
the development and implementation is 
driven by local Community Plan Steering 
Groups with support from Council staff. 

Since the commencement of community 
planning at Greater Shepparton City 
Council, the following towns have had 
Community Plans endorsed: 

•	 Dookie	2002	–	reviewed	in	2011
•	 Merrigum	2006	–	reviewed	in	2012
•	 Undera	2008
•	 Tatura	2010
•	 Mooroopna	2010
•	 Toolamba	2011
•	 Murchison	2011

Community Plans for Tallygaroopna, 
Katandra West and Congupna are under 
development for 2012. 

Council allocated $500,000 towards 
Community Plan Implementation 
projects in 2011/12. These projects are 
assessed on a case by case basis and 
the following were supported through 
this funding stream during 2011/12.

TOWN PROjECT $

mOOROOPNA mooroopna’s men’s Shed 30,000

  john Gray Oval Shelter  55,000

TATURA Lake bartlett master Plan 24,900

  bike Racks / Seats 15,600

  Town entry enhancement 1,280

  mactier Park master Plan 5,500

mERRiGUm Cnr Park development 25,000

  heritage flyer 1,039

  hall repainting 25,454

dOOkiE  Rail Trail signage 5,000

  drainage Review 23,800

UNdERA Netball court 23,000

  Recreation master Plan 17,400

TOOLAmbA Recreation master Plan 18,700

  Equipment for Community Events 3,049

  Website 1,000

TOTAL   $279,222.00
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GRAntS
Greater Shepparton City Council provides community grants through a range of funding programs 
including the Community Matching Grants, Arts Awards Grants, Our Sporting Future Grants and Festive 
Grants programs. 

This is in addition to in-kind support and sponsorship for various programs, initiatives and events as well 
as committee of management funding support and a close working relationship with Community Action 
Plan groups.

Community mAtCHinG GRAntS
Council approved $31,355 for 16 community groups in the 2011/12 Community Matching Grants  
program.The grants are designed to support community projects that help build social connections  
and partnerships, enable community members to acquire or develop a new skill, or create, renew or revitalise 
places and spaces within the community.  

They require the applicant group to provide part of the project cost, either through cash or  
in-kind contribution.

ORGANiSATiON PROjECT $

CANiAmbO CWA ANd ShEEP PEN CREEk LANdCARE Celebration dinner ‘year of the farmer’ 1,210

CONGUPNA SOCiAL TENNiS CLUb GROUP Tennis court upgrade 2,500

CONGUPNA/TALLyGAROOPNA LANdCARE GROUP Repairing pony paddock 1,770

GOULbURN vALLEy CONGOLESE ASSOCiATiON Congolese independence day 2,500

GOULbURN vALLEy jUmPiNG CLUb Tatura indoor Show jumping Classic 2,500

GOULbURN vALLEy SOUTh SUdANESE COmmUNiTy ASSOCiATiON iNC Celebration of independence day 2,500

GOWRiE STREET PRimARy SChOOL Upgrade sports courts and signage 2,500

LiONS CLUb Of dOOkiE Playground equipment 2,500

LiONS CLUb Of dOOkiE (AUSPiCE) Rail Trail Picnic Shelter 2,500

mOOROOPNA EdUCATiON ANd ACTiviTy CENTRE Labyrinth project 970

mURChiSON NEiGhbOURhOOd hOUSE Safety glass for playgroup area 805

mURChiSON PRE-SChOOL iNCORPORATEd Secret garden project 2,500

ShEPP SOUNdS Shepp Sounds 2012 event support 2,500

ShEPPARTON CAmERA CLUb Art program 2,500

STRiNGS Of hARmONy Puppet show 2,500

TALLyGAROOPNA GOLf CLUb Clubhouse repairs 2,500

TOTAL   $31,355.00
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ARtS in tHE Community FunD
Council has an Arts in the Community program with $46,000 funding available for 2011/12. Of this, $4,600  
was allocated across three projects.

The fund supports projects and events that are broadly accessible to the community and showcase  
local arts and culture in the Greater Shepparton region.

ouR SPoRtinG FutuRE FunDinG PRoGRAm
The Our Sporting Future Funding Program has been established to assist community organisations with  
the implementation of small to medium sized facility development projects and development programs  
for new and developing sporting organisations throughout the Greater Shepparton municipality.

The program has three funding types – Minor, Major and Sports Aid.

Major funds are provided on a $1 for $1 basis with up to $30,000 available per project.

Minor funds are provided on a $1 for $1 basis (including in-kind contributions) with up to $15,000 available 
per project for small sized facility developments. 

Sports aid funds are available for between $500 and $5000 for special projects that support new and 
developing sporting organisations, or for special access and participation projects. 

In 2011/12, a budget of $109, 200 was available for minor and sports aid funds. Of this, $89,222 was allocated 
across 11 projects. In the major category, $120,000 was available with $72,550 allocated across three projects. 

our Sporting Future – Major

ORGANiSATiON PROjECT $

CENTRAL PARk RECREATiON RESERvE Oval lighting 30,000

ShEPPARTON fOOTbALL CLUb Air conditioning 22,550

ShEPPARTON jUNiOR SOCCER ASSOCiATiON murray Slee Pavilion shelter 20,000

TOTAL  $72, 550

ORGANiSATiON PROjECT $

SOUTh SUdAN iNdEPENdENCE CELEbRATiON COmmiTTEE independence Celebration 2,000

ShEPPARTON CREATivE TExTiLES GROUP bright, brave, beautiful exhibition and workshops 1,000

ShEPP SOUNdS Shepp Sounds 2011 1,600

TOTAL  $4,600
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our Sporting Future - Minor

ORGANiSATiON PROjECT $

CONGUPNA NETbALL CLUb Netball court extension to meet Netball victoria standards 8,875

GREATER ShEPPARTON bASkETbALL ASSOCiATiON improved electronic scoring 5,978.50

hiLL TOP bOWLS CLUb Seating  5,000

LEmNOS TENNiS CLUb Tennis facility upgrade 14,000

mEdLANd PARk bOdy CORPORATE Playground equipment 2,900

mOOROOPNA bOWLS CLUb Shade shelters 7,920

ORRvALE PRimARy SChOOL Senior playground 5,598

ShEPPARTON ROWiNG CLUb boat shed 15,000

TATURA NETbALL ASSOCiATiON Netball court lighting 15,000

TOTAL  $80,272

our Sporting Future – Sports aid

ORGANiSATiON PROjECT $

ShEPPARTON ROWiNG CLUb Reform club 5,000

SkATEbOARdiNG AUSTRALiA Set up street wise skate program 3,950

TOTAL  $8,950

CyCLinG iS A PoPuLAR AnD GRoWinG SPoRt tHRouGHout GREAtER SHEPPARton.
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SPonSoRSHiP
Greater Shepparton City Council has funds of up to $500 available for people seeking 
sponsorship assistance to represent the region at various sporting, community and 
other significant achievement opportunities. The policy also enables support for local 
events and celebrations. 

In 2011/12 Council approved 25 sponsorship requests worth $10,000.

SmALL toWnSHiP FEStiVE GRAntS
Council’s Small Townships Festive Grants program provides communities with less 
than 10,000 people with the opportunity to apply for grants of up to $2500 to create  
a festive atmosphere within their towns by purchasing and installing sustainable  
festive decorations.

Community
REPoRt

ORGANiSATiON $

LifESTyLE dOOkiE 2,500

mERRiGUm COmmUNiTy GROUP 2,500

mOOROOPNA EdUCATiON ANd ACTiviTy CENTRE iNC 1,800

mURChiSON ACTiON GROUP 2,500

TATURA COmmUNiTy PLAN STEERiNG COmmiTTEE 1,300

TOOLAmbA LiONS CLUb 2,500

TOTAL $13,100

mAjOR EvENTS SUPPORTEd 

70.3 hALf iRONmAN TRiAThLON

AUSTRALASiAN SChOOLS CyCLiNG CUP

CAROLS by CANdLELiGhT CELEbRATiONS 

fOOTbALL fEdERATiON viCTORiA GALA 
ChAmPiONShiPS 

GREATER ShEPPARTON bASkETbALL 
ASSOCiATiON jUNiOR TOURNAmENT

iNTERNATiONAL dAiRy WEEk

mELbOURNE hEART COmmUNiTy fOOTbALL 
fESTivAL 

NATiONAL WELSh hORSE ShOW

NEW yEARS EvE fESTivAL  iN mOOROOPNA

ShEPPARTON fESTivAL

ShEPPARTON ShOW

SOUThERN SEvEN CUTTiNG hORSES

SPRiNG CAR NATiONALS

UNdER 15 ANd UNdER 17 NATiONAL ROAd 
CyCLiNG ChAmPiONShiPS 

UNdER 19 NATiONAL ROAd CyCLiNG 
ChAmPiONShiPS 

viCTORiAN APPALOOSA hORSE ChAmPiONShiPS 

viCTORiAN OPEN bOWLS

viCTORiAN SOfTbALL mASTERS ChAmPiONShiPS 

WORLd CUP ShOWjUmPiNG QUALifiER

nEW EVEnt SuPPoRt
Council provided in kind and funding 
support to more than 80 events during the 
2011/12 financial year including $375,000 in 
grants to a variety of annual and new major 
events, festivals, community events and 
business events.

The total economic impact contributed to 
the community as result of these events 
is estimated to be in excess of $50 million 
and bringing approximately 150,000 
visitors to the region.

Below is a snapshot of some of the 
significant events Council supported during 
2011/12 in addition to its own community 
event program including Australia Day, 
the Summer Film Festival, Twilight Stroll, 
Summer Strolls and KidsFest.

CounCiL PRoViDED in kinD AnD FunDinG SuPPoRt to moRE tHAn 80 EVEntS DuRinG tHE 2011/12 
FinAnCiAL yEAR inCLuDinG $375,000 in GRAntS to A VARiEty oF AnnuAL AnD nEW mAjoR EVEntS, 
FEStiVALS, Community EVEntS AnD BuSinESS EVEntS.
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CounCiL PRoViDED in kinD AnD FunDinG 
SuPPoRt to moRE tHAn 80 EVEntS 
DuRinG tHE 2011/12 FinAnCiAL yEAR 
inCLuDinG $375,000 in GRAntS.

“
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FLooD REPoRt
As a result of a severe weather event 
with unprecedented heavy rainfall during 
the period from 27 February to 1 March, 
the City of Greater Shepparton suffered 
varying levels of flooding throughout the 
municipality. 

The north of the municipality was 
hardest hit with the Pine Lodge Creek 
and Congupna Creek bursting the banks 
and the sheer volume of rain placing 
significant strain on town and rural 
drainage networks, channels and levees.

The bulk of rural properties across 
the north of the municipality through 
Bunbartha,	Cosgrove,	Lemnos,	Undera	
and Zeerust areas and the townships 
of Congupna, Katandra West and 
Tallygaroopna were particularly impacted 
with an estimated 250 homes damaged 
and around 1000 properties affected.

In addition to the immediate emergency 
response, Council’s case management 
service provided ongoing support to 
110 households during and after the 
event assisting them to access physical, 
emotional and financial support.

Under	the	Emergency	Management	Act	
1986 (the Act), the State Emergency 
Service is the lead agency for emergency 
response in a flood event.

The primary role of local government 
is to provide assistance to the SES 
as directed, to manage Council 
infrastructure and coordinate key flood 
relief and recovery support services.
Council has a Municipal Emergency 
Management Plan and, in a major 
emergency, activates a Municipal 
Emergency Coordination Centre which  
is linked with the higher level SES 
Incident Control Centre.

During the February/March floods, 
Council’s emergency management 
team, in partnership with Victoria Police, 
the Country Fire Authority (CFA) and 
the Victoria State Emergency Service 
(SES) became involved with a number 
of mitigation strategies put in place to 
assist and support communities during 
and after the event.

Council also provided support to Moira 
Shire through the provision of relief and 
recovery functions including operating 
the Kialla Relief Centre, assisting with 
staffing the Nathalia Relief Centre and 
providing emergency case management 
assistance to Moira residents unable to 
access other centres.

Council spent approximately $150,000 on 
salaries for response, relief and recovery 
and there has been approximately 220 
days of work provided by volunteers. 

Infrastructure costs are estimated to be 
in vicinity of $1 million with works on 
roads, bridges and culverts as well as 
repairs to other Council assets damaged 
by the floods including recreation 
reserves, playgrounds, kindergartens 
and occasional care.

Work continues to support communities 
post the event in delivering flood mitigation 
works and a range of recovery supports 
including the development of integrated 
emergency management plans and 
economic development initiatives.

Community
REPoRt

FEB mARCH

29

08

27

28

27 Feb Severe weather event hits resulting in flash 
flooding. An emergency relief centre is on standby  
in Shepparton based on forecast heavy rain.  
Road closures begin.

28 Feb Many homes threatened with 
inundation. Sand bagging begins.

05 March Shepparton Emergency Relief Centre closes due to decreased 
demand. Recovery Manager available 24/7 for emergency assistance. 
Recovery Centres open in Congupna, Katandra West and Tallygaroopna 
servicing approximately 400 people with case management, personal 
support, emergency grant officers and flood information.

8-17 March Council holds second round of flood 
recovery meeting to provide update on relief, clean 
up and recovery services. Council produces regular 
bulletins, fact sheets, media and social media 
information about support services.

01
01 March Council’s Municipal Emergency Coordination Centre 
opens to support existing SES Incident Control Centre. Large 
scale asset protection begins. Council activates information 
bulletin and provides regular information to media about relief 
services. Emergency accommodation provided for livestock and 
pets at saleyards, animal shelter and Tatura Park facility.

04 March Council hosts first of 
many flood recovery meetings 
attended by around 400 people. 04

29 Feb 
Further  
heavy rainfall, 
properties 
again under 
threat. 
Approximately 
300 mm fall in 
total in hardest 
hit areas.

26 March Red Cross Outreach returns. 
Building advisory service available. Central 
recovery centre closes after more than 700 
visits and more than 1000 hardship grants. 
Council’s emergency case management 
service remains active with around 100 
households still accessing ongoing support  
at this stage. Free waste drop off for  
flood affected properties finishes.

05

26

timELinE
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tHE City oF GREAtER SHEPPARton SuFFERED VARyinG LEVELS oF FLooDinG tHRouGHout tHE muniCiPALity DuRinG tHE FEBRuARy 2012 FLooDS.

APRiL mAy

01 01

april Council holds third round of community recovery     
 meetings with a focus on drainage needs.

May More Red Cross outreach visits held. Emergency funding 
obtained to provide pump-out of septic tanks for flood affected 
properties. Environmental Health Officers make contact with 
196 property owners concerned about septic tank systems. 
Subsequently 43 properties have a septic tank pump-out, costing 
to date $18,380. Mosquito Control Officer visits Congupna, 
Tallygaroopna and Katandra West in weeks following the flood. 
 Areas of poor drainage assessed and treatment applied to   
  drains in some circumstances.
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FLooD REPoRt Cont.

Planning
Several days after the floods began 
Planning Officers went out on the road 
to assess the flooding and to meet with 
flood affected landowners. They attended 
the Recovery Centres at Katandra West, 
and Congupna.

Planning Officers also attended the 
community meetings after the floods 
at Katandra West, Congupna and 
Tallygaroopna to discuss drainage 
issues and address any queries from 
the community.

The Planning Investigations Officer 
has been working with Councils 
Development Engineers to address 
a total of 13 complaints in relation to 
drainage issues in the farming zone. 
These investigations are still ongoing.

engineering/Flood Mitigation Works
A number of community engagement 
sessions were held in each town to 
determine engineering solutions to 
address and mitigate risk associated 
with floods. Works were completed and 
future works planned to mitigate the 
impact of large rain events/flooding in the 
Congupna, Katandra, Tallygaroopna and 
Lemnos North Road areas.

Lessons Learned
Key learnings and improvements 
identified include:
•	 Formal	flood	plans	for	small	towns
  to be developed, incorporating a   
 communications strategy and  
 local knowledge.
•	 Community	information	is	vital	for		
 ensuring community safety and  
 awareness during emergency events.  
 Information and warnings were   
 provided to the community through  
 a variety of outlets, which ensure  
 broad coverage and accessibility   
 for the majority. 

 

 It was acknowledged that there is a
  need to increase communication and
  collaboration between SES and
  Council regarding community   
 meetings, the Municipal Emergency  
 Coordination Centre to liaise with  
 the Incident Control Centre during  
 an event to develop a combined   
 Community Communication Strategy  
 to ensure consistency.  

 Specifically:
 - Improve early notification systems  
  and strategies.
 - Community meetings can be
   planned and delivered more   
  strategically.
 - Need to communicate transition in
   SES priorities so Council can
   pick up community communications.
 - Council Emergency Management  
  Liaison Officer (EMLO) at ICC from  
  the onset of the event to provide  
  local intelligence and coordinate  
  municipal efforts.
•	 Development	of	a	Vulnerable	Persons	List.
•	 Need	to	have	agreed	central	point		
 in towns to put up all community  
 information, this should be updated  
 regularly.
•	 Deploy	personal	support	workers
  earlier, this can help to diffuse   
 emotional pressure earlier and  
 support everyone else to work better. 
•	 Review	and	update	training	and	skills 
  for Council staff directly relating to  
 the sustainability of surge capacity to  
 enable Council to maintain their role  
 in response, relief and early recovery  
 for the community.
•	 Engage	with	Government	earlier	to
  ensure that the process and   
 applicability of Federal/State grants  
 and case management requirements  
 are more timely, responsive and   
 structured during relief and  
 recovery phases.
•	 Victoria	Police	to	develop	plans	for		
 town evacuations.

It is envisaged that these actions 
will form the basis of the work plan 
for the newly appointed Emergency 
Management Officer positions which 
commenced 9 July 2012. 

FLooD FiGuRES
 The amount of rain (mm) that fell  
  in the areas hit by flash floods  
   and overland flooding.

 
 The estimated number of   
  homes damaged within Greater  
   Shepparton.

 How many households were
  affected overall, including those
   cut off by flood water.

 The number of households who
  used Council’s Case Management  
   Services in the aftermath.

 The number of days of work   
  provided by volunteers.

 The salaries paid for response, relief  
  and recovery personnel.

 

 The estimated cost of Council’s  
  infrastructure repair works.

Community
REPoRt

300

250

1000

110

180

$150k

$1m
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FLooDS HAD A mAjoR imPACt on ouR 
REGion in FEBRuARy AnD mARCH 2012.
“
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A SUmmARy Of COUNCiL ACTiviTiES, COmmiTTEES, 
ORGANiSATiONAL dEvELOPmENT iNiTiATivES 
ANd OThER COmPLiANCE ANd LEGiSLATivE 
iNfORmATiON fOR 2011/12.

05
GoVERnAnCE
REPoRt
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GoVERnAnCE
REPoRt
CounCiL ACtiVitiES
Council meetings
Council meetings are held at 1pm on  
the third Tuesday of each month including 
public question time. Special Council 
Meetings are also held as required. 
Public questions can be submitted  
prior to the Council meeting. 

There were 12 Ordinary Council Meetings 
and nine Special Council Meetings in 2011/12.

Weekly briefings are also held as well 
as a number of special committee 
meetings.

Council Committees
Council can appoint advisory committees 
and committees with special delegated 
power. There are 21 Section 86 
committees made up of community 
volunteers. Most of the committees 
have delegated functions for community 
facilities such as recreation reserves, 
community centres and halls.

Section 86 Committees
•	 Arcadia	Community	Centre		 	
 Committee of Management
•	 Ballantyne	Centre	Committee	 
 of Management
•	 Bunbartha	Recreation	Reserve	 
 and Community Centre Committee  
 of Management
•	 Caniambo	Hall	Committee	 
 of Management
•	 Central	Park	Recreation	Reserve			
 Committee of Management
•	 Congupna	Recreation	Reserve	 
 and Community Centre Committee  
 of Management
•	 Dhurringile	Recreation	Reserve		 	
 and Community Centre Committee  
 of Management
•	 Dookie	Memorial	Hall	Committee	 
 of Management
•	 Dookie	Recreation	Reserve	and		 	
 Community Centre Committee  
 of Management
•	 Harston	Hall	Committee	 
 of Management
•	 Karramomus	Recreation	Reserve		
 and Community Centre Committee  
 of Management
•	 Katandra	West	Community	Facilities		
 Committee of Management
•	 Kialla	District	Hall	Committee	 
 of Management

•	 Kialla	Landfill	Site	Special	Committee
•	 Kialla	West	Recreation	Reserve		 	
 Committee of Management
•	 Lemnos	Recreation	Reserve		 	
 Committee of Management
•	 Murchison	Community	Centre		 	
 Committee of Management
•	 Shepparton	Show	Me	Committee	 
 of Management
•	 Tallygaroopna	Memorial	Hall		 	
 Committee of Management
•	 Tallygaroopna	Recreation	Reserve		
 Committee of Management
•	 Toolamba	Recreation	Reserve		 	
 Committee of Management

advisory Committees
Council also has 20 advisory committees 
with community representatives. 
Advisory committees provide advice 
to Council but, unlike a Section 86 
committee, have no delegated authority.

•	 Arts	Co-ordinating	Group	Advisory		
 Committee
•	 Best	Start	Municipal	Early	Years		 	
 Partnership Committee
•	 Cussen	Park	Advisory	Committee
•	 Deakin	Reserve	Advisory	Committee
•	 Disability	Advisory	Committee
•	 Festive	Decorations	Advisory		 	
 Committee
•	 Greater	Shepparton	Aerodrome		 	
 Advisory Committee
•	 Greater	Shepparton	Municipal	Public		
 Health Panel
•	 Greater	Shepparton	Safe		 	
 Communities Advisory Committee
•	 Greater	Shepparton	Sustainability		
 and Environment Stakeholder   
 Reference Committee
•	 Greater	Shepparton	Tourism	 
 Advisory Committee
•	 Heritage	Advisory	Committee
•	 Older	Persons	Advisory	Committee
•	 Pine	Lodge	Cemetery	Advisory		 	
 Committee
•	 RiverConnect	Implementation		 	
 Advisory Committee
•	 Shepparton	Art	Museum	Advisory		
 Committee
•	 Shepparton	Regional	Saleyards		 	
 Advisory Committee
•	 Shepparton	Showgrounds	Advisory		
 Committee
•	 Tatura	Park	Advisory	Committee
•	 Women’s	Charter	Alliance	Advisory		
 Committee

audit and Risk Management 
Committee
The Audit and Risk Management 
Committee is appointed to provide the 
Council with additional assurance that 
the financial and internal procedures and 
systems of the organisations are in order, 
risks are identified and managed, and the 
organisation is complying with all laws 
and regulations affecting it. 

The committee comprises two 
Councillors and three external 
independent people appointed by 
Council. The membership of the 
committee at 30 June 2012 is:
 
•	 Mr	Steve	Bowmaker,	 
 ACA, Chairperson 
•	 Mr	Laurie	Gleeson,	CPA	
•	 Mr	Peter	Johnson,	BA	LL	B	
•	 Cr	Chris	Hazelman	
•	 Cr	Cherie	Crawford	

The committee reviews the activities of 
the independent internal auditor, Pitcher 
Partners, and external auditor (Auditor 
General Victoria) and reviews their work 
on an ongoing basis. 

The annual internal audit program and 
the scope of the works to be performed 
is set by the committee and the 
committee reviews each of the reports 
made pursuant to that program.

The committee met four times during the 
year with the following activities carried out.
•	 Financial	Statements,	Standard
 Statements and Performance   
 Statement for the year ended 30 June
 2011 were considered and recommended  
 ‘in principle’ adoption to Council. 
•	 Received	monthly	risk	management		
 reports including insurance claims,  
 lawsuits, whistleblower and  
 privacy breaches. 
•	 Received	a	presentation	by	the		 	
 Victoria Auditor General on the   
 management letter for year ended 
 30 June 2011.
•	 Received	the	Victoria	Auditor	General		
 Acquittal report for the 2010/11  
 Audit results.
•	 Received	and	considered	Council’s		
 monthly financial reports. 
•	 Received	a	report	on	the	external		
 Audit Strategy for the year ended 
 30 June 2012. 
•	 Received	Shepparton	Show	Me	 
 audit report. 
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otHER ComPLiAnCE REPoRtS
The following information must be 
included in Council’s annual report in 
accordance with legislative requirements.

DoCumEntS AVAiLABLE  
FoR PuBLiC inSPECtion
In accordance with the  Local 
Government (General) Amendment 
Regulations, the following documents 
are available for public inspection at 
Council’s Welsford Street office.

•	 details	of	current	allowances	fixed	for		
 the Mayor and Councillors under   
 section 74 or 74A of the Act;
•	 the	total	annual	remuneration	for	all
  senior officers in respect of the   
 current financial year and the previous  
 financial year, set out in a list  
 that states:
 (i) ranges of remuneration of senior
   officers, where the difference  
  between the lower amount and
   the higher amount in each range  
  must not exceed $10,000; and
 (ii) the number of senior officers   
  whose total annual remuneration  
  falls within the ranges referred to  
  in subparagraph (i).
•	 details	of	overseas	or	interstate
 travel (with the exception of interstate  
 travel by land for less than three days)
 undertaken in an official capacity by
  Councillors or any member of Council
 staff in the previous 12 months,   
 including the names of the Councillors  
 or members of Council staff and the  
 date, destination, purpose and total  
 cost of the overseas or interstate  
 travel, including accommodation costs;
•	 names	of	Council	officers	who	were		
 required to submit a return of interest  
 during the financial year and the dates  
 the returns were submitted;
•	 names	of	Councillors	who	submitted		
 returns of interest during the financial  
 year and the dates the returns 
 were submitted;
•	 agendas	for	and	minutes	of	ordinary		
 and special meetings held in the  
 previous 12 months kept under section  
 93 of the Act except if the minutes  
 relate to parts of meetings which have  
 been closed to members of the public  
 under section 89 of the Act;
•	 a	list	of	all	special	committees		 	
 established by Council and the   
 purpose for which each committee  
 was established;

•	 a	list	of	all	special	committees		 	
 established by the Council which were  
 abolished or ceased to function during  
 the financial year;
•	 minutes	of	meetings	of	special		 	
 committees established under section  
 86 of the Act and held in the previous  
 12 months except if the minutes   
 relate to parts of meetings which have  
 been closed to members of the public  
 under section 89 of the Act;
•	 a	register	of	delegations	kept	under
  sections 87 and 98 of the Act,   
 including the dates on which the last  
 reviews under section 86(6) and 98(6)  
 of the Act took place;
•	 submissions	received	in	accordance		
 with section 223 of the Act during the  
 previous 12 months;
•	 agreements	to	establish	regional		
 libraries under section 196 of the Act;
•	 details	of	all	property,	finance	and
  operating leases involving land,   
 buildings, plant, computer equipment  
 or vehicles entered into by the Council  
 as lessor or lessee, including the  
 name of the other party to the lease  
 and the terms and the value of  
 the lease;
•	 a	register	of	authorised	officers		 	
 appointed under section 224 of the Act;
•	 a	list	of	donations	and	grants	made		
 by the Council during the financial  
 year, including the names of persons  
 or bodies which have received a   
 donation or grant and the amount of  
 each donation or grant;
•	 a	list	of	the	names	of	the		 	
 organisations of which the Council  
 was a member during the financial  
 year and details of all membership  
 fees and other amounts and services  
 provided during that year to each  
 organisation by the Council;
•	 a	list	of	contracts	valued	at	$100,000		
 (or such higher amount as is fixed  
 from time to time under section   
 186(1) of the Act) or more:
 (iii) which the Council entered into  
  during the financial year without
   first engaging in a competitive  
  process; and 
 (iv) which are not contracts referred  
  to in section 186(5) or (5A) of the Act.

Note: The Act provides that an amount 
higher than $100,000 may be fixed by 
Order in Council made under section 
186(1) of the Act.
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LoCAL LAWS
Local Law no 1 Community Living
This local law provides for the 
administration of Council powers  
and functions, and for the issue of 
permits and infringement notices. 

It prohibits, regulates and controls 
activities, events, practices or behaviour 
in places so that no detriment is caused 
to the amenity of the neighbourhood, 
nuisance to a person, or detrimental 
effect to a person’s property. 

It also prohibits, regulates and controls 
activities, events, practices or behaviour in 
the Maude Street Mall so that no detriment 
is caused to the amenity of the Mall. 

It regulates the droving and movement 
of livestock throughout the municipal 
district, minimises the damage to road 
surfaces, formations, drainage, native 
vegetation and surrounding areas arising 
from livestock and to alert other road 
users to the presence of livestock on 
roads in the interests of road safety. 
It also aims to enhance public safety 
and community amenity.

Local Law no 2 Processes of 
Local Government (Meetings 
and Common Seal) 
This local law regulates and controls 
processes for the election of Mayor and 
chairpersons of committees, procedures 
for formal Council and committee 
meetings, and use of the Common Seal.

Local Law no 5 Drainage of Land
This local law enables better 
implementation of an exercise of 
power, under section 163(1) of the Local 
Government Act 1989, to define the 
obligations of a member of Council staff; 
and a person authorised by Council when 
entering land to investigate the carrying 
out of drainage works on or adjacent to 
or for the benefit of that land.

This local law defines what a member of 
Council staff; and a person authorised by 
Council may do once they have entered 
land to investigate the carrying out of 
drainage works on, adjacent to or for  
the benefit of that land, and provides for 
the peace, order and good government 
of the municipal district.

Requests for information should be directed to the Freedom of Information Officer, 
Greater Shepparton City Council, Locked Bag 1000, Shepparton, Vic, 3632 or  
phone (03) 5832 9700.

WHiStLEBLoWERS PRotECtion ACt
Council is committed to the aims and objectives of the Whistleblowers Protection 
Act 2001 and does not tolerate improper conduct by its employees, nor the taking 
of reprisals against those who come forward to disclose such conduct. 

Council recognises the value of transparency and accountability in its administrative 
and management practices, and supports the making of disclosures that reveal 
corrupt conduct, conduct involving a substantial mismanagement of public resources, 
or conduct involving a substantial risk to public health and safety or the environment. 
Council will take all reasonable steps to protect people who make such disclosures 
from any detrimental action in reprisal for making the disclosure, and will also afford 
natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure.

Council conducted compulsory Whistleblower training to provide staff with an 
awareness of the Whistleblower Protection Act and the process surrounding the 
receipt of a protected disclosure.

The Act commenced operation on 1 January 2002, and procedures have been 
developed that establish a system for reporting disclosures of improper conduct 
or detrimental action by employees of the Council. These procedures are publicly 
available at the Council offices and website.

As at 30 June 2012, Council’s Protected Disclosure Officers are the people holding  
the position of:

•	 Team	Leader	Governance;
•	 Manager	People	Performance
•	 The	Protected	Disclosure	Coordinator	is	the	Chief	Executive	Officer.

FREEDom oF inFoRmAtion 
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 establishes a legally enforceable right for public 
access to information held by Council.

fREEdOm Of iNfORmATiON ACTiviTy 2011/12 

dESCRiPTiON NUmbER

APPLiCATiONS RECEivEd 21

ACCESS GRANTEd iN fULL 2

ACCESS GRANTEd iN PART 4

NUmbER NOT fiNALiSEd 4

NOT PROCEEdEd WiTh 9

NO iNfORmATiON fOUNd 1

ACCESS dENiEd iN fULL 1
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WhiSTLEbLOWER ACTiviTy 2011/12 

dESCRiPTiON NUmbER

NUmbER ANd TyPE Of diSCLOSURES mAdE TO ThE COUNCiL dURiNG ThE yEAR 0

NUmbER Of diSCLOSURES REfERREd TO ThE OmbUdSmAN fOR dETERmiNATiON 0

NUmbER ANd TyPE Of diSCLOSEd mATTERS REfERREd TO ThE COUNCiL by ThE OmbUdSmAN  
fOR iNvESTiGATiON 0

NUmbER ANd TyPE Of diSCLOSEd mATTERS REfERREd by ThE COUNCiL TO ThE OmbUdSmAN  
fOR iNvESTiGATiON 0

NUmbER ANd TyPE Of iNvESTiGATiONS TAkEN OvER fROm ThE COUNCiL by ThE OmbUdSmAN 0

NUmbER Of REQUESTS mAdE by A WhiSTLEbLOWER TO ThE OmbUdSmAN TO TAkE OvER AN  
iNvESTiGATiON by ThE COUNCiL 0

NUmbER ANd TyPES Of diSCLOSEd mATTERS ThAT ThE COUNCiL hAS dECLiNEd TO iNvESTiGATE 0

NUmbER ANd TyPE Of diSCLOSEd mATTERS ThAT WERE SUbSTANTiATEd UPON iNvESTiGATiON  
ANd ACTiON TAkEN ON COmPLETiON Of ThE iNvESTiGATiON 0

ANy RECOmmENdATiONS mAdE by ThE OmbUdSmAN ThAT RELATE TO ThE PUbLiC bOdy 0

tHE oRCHARDS oF tHE REGion ContRiButE not juSt to tHE EConomy But to GREAtER SHEPPARton’S iDEntity.
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DiSCLoSuRE RELAtinG to ContRACtS
Section 186 of Local Government Act 
1989 requires Council to seek public 
tenders before entering into contracts 
valued at greater than $150,000 for goods 
and services and $200,000 for works. 
Councils are required to make available to 
the public a list of contracts above these 
amounts which were entered into during 
the financial year without first engaging  
in a competitive process. 

Procurement was raised in the 
organisation review and will be 
investigated in more detail in 2012/13.

ContinuouS imPRoVEmEnt
Greater Shepparton City Council has 
applied the principles of the Best Value 
Review through the adoption and 
application of a Continuous Improvement 
procedure.

nAtionAL ComPEtition PoLiCy 
ComPLiAnCE
Greater Shepparton City Council has 
a compliance program to ensure it 
meets the requirements of the National 
Competition Policy (NCP). This covers 
Trade Practices, Local Laws and 
Competitive Neutrality compliance.

GoVERnAnCE
REPoRt
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FERRARi PARk, mooRooPnA“
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A fiNANCiAL SUmmARy fOR 2011/12 AS  
WELL AS ThE fiNANCiAL STATEmENTS, STANdARd 
STATEmENTS, CERTifiCATiONS ANd AUdiT REPORT.

06
FinAnCiAL
SummARy
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Council is in a sound financial position 
and returned a net surplus of $11.43 
million. This was primarily due to  
Council receiving early payments  
for government grants.

The total value of community assets 
increased to $693.94 million. 

HiGHLiGHtS
•	 Total	Operating	Expenses:	 
 $100.34 million.       
•	 Total	Operating	Revenues	 
 (excluding capital): $100.48 million. 
•	 Capital	Works	Completed:	 
 $26.18 million. 
•	 Total	Capital	Revenues:	$11.28	million.	

•	 Borrowings:	$3	million	to	finalise	the		
 GV Link land acquisition. 
•	 Continued	prompt	payment	incentive		
 providing 1.5 per cent discount   
 for ratepayers who pay in full by  
 23 September. 

FinAnCiAL SummARy
oPERAtinG inComE 2011/12

 

 

Rates and Charges
$54,074,349

53.81%

Grants 
Non-Recurrent
$6,808,391
6.78%

Share of Net Profits (losses) of
Associates and Joint Ventures

Accounted for by the Equity Method
$127,362 

0.13%

User Fees
$15,954,086
15.88%

Net Gain (Loss) Disposal
of Assets (0%)

$1,109,939 
1.10%

Parking Fees and Fines
$1,856,257 
1.85%

Other Revenue
$1,977,617
1.97%

Contributions 
Non-monetary assets
$3,338,306
3.32%

Contributions - Cash
$2,019,373
2.01%

Grants Recurrent
$24,496,738
24.38%

oPERAtinG inComE 

2011/12
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Operating Capital
63.44%

Urban Development Strategy 1.39%
Development Strategy1.43%

Saleyards Strategy 1.52%
Parking Cash in Lieu 1.70%

Art Gallery 1.96%

Recreation Land Strategy 2.10%

Waste Management Strategy
14.76%

Long Service Leave
3.80%

Trust Funds
7.90%

 

  

Depreciation and Amortisation
$17,523,090
17.46%

Employee Benefits consists of wages, superannuation and workcover.

Materials and Services cosist of contracts, consultants, utilities, insurance, motor vehicle running costs, repairs 
and maintenance and advertising.

Employee Benefits
$41,568,377
41.43%

Write off of demolished assets
$234,513
0.23%

Finance Costs
$1,033,763
1.03%Bad and Doubtful Debts

$200,426
0.20%

Write Down of intangible assets
$213,388

0.21%

Materials and Services
$39,562,875

39.43%

oPERAtinG 
inVEStmEntS

2011/12

oPERAtinG ExPEnSE 

2011/12
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FinAnCiAL SummARy
oPERAtinG inComE 2011/12
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Renewal
50.40%

New
31.65%

Upgrade
Expansion
28.50%

 
 

 

 
 

 

Renewal
51.94%

New
12.11%

Upgrade
Expansion
35.95%

CAPitAL ExPEnDituRE 
(By tyPE) 

2011/12

CAPitAL ExPEnDituRE 
(By tyPE) 

2010/11
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fiNANCiAL STATEmENTS fOR 2011/12
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FinAnCiAL
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FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
Comprehensive income Statement 69
Balance Sheet 70
Statement of Changes in Equity 71
Cash Flow Statement 72

 
notES to FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS 
 introduction 73
note 1 Significant accounting policies 73
note 2 Events occurring after balance date 79
note 3 Rates and charges 80
note 4 Parking fees and fines 80
note 5 user fees 80
note 6 Grants 81
note 7 Contributions 83
note 8 other revenue 83
note 9 Employee benefits 83
note 10 materials and services 84
note 11 Bad and doubtful debts  84
note 12 Depreciation and amortisation 84
note 13 Write off demolished assets 84
note 14 net gain(loss) on disposal of assets 85
note 15 investment in associates 85
note 16 Cash and cash equivalents 86
note 17 trade and other receivables 86
note 18 intangible assets  86
note 19 Write down of intangible assets 86
note 20 Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure 87
note 21 trade and other payables 93
note 22 trust funds and deposits 93
note 23 Provisions 93
note 24 income received in advance 94
note 25 interest-bearing loans and borrowings 94
note 26 Reserves 94
note 27 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating  
 activities to surplus (deficit) 95
note 28 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 95
note 29 Financing arrangements 95
note 30 Restricted assets 95
note 31 Superannuation  96
note 32 Commitments 97
note 33 operating leases 98
note 34 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 98
note 35 Financial instruments 99
note 36 Auditors remuneration 102
note 37 Related party transactions 103
note 38 Revenue, expenses and assets by functions/activities 105
note 39 Financial ratios (Performance indicators) 106
note 40 Pending Accounting Standards 107
Certification of the Financial Report 108

FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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ComPREHEnSiVE inComE StAtEmEnt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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BALAnCE SHEEt AS At 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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StAtEmEnt oF CHAnGES in Equity - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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CASH FLoW StAtEmEnt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS



80

notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS



94

notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS



106

notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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notES to tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt - yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS
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CERtiFiCAtion oF tHE FinAnCiAL REPoRt
FinAnCiAL StAtEmEntS



STANdARd STATEmENTS fOR 2011/12.
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
StAnDARD inComE StAtEmEntS
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
StAnDARD BALAnCE SHEEt
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
StAnDARD CASH FLoW StAtEmEntS
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
StAnDARD CAPitAL WoRkS StAtEmEnt
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012

notES ACComPAnyinG  
tHE StAnDARD StAtEmEntS
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012

notES ACComPAnyinG  
tHE StAnDARD StAtEmEntS
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012

notES ACComPAnyinG  
tHE StAnDARD StAtEmEntS
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CERtiFiCAtion oF 
tHE StAnDARD StAtEmEntS
yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
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viCTORiAN AUdiTOR GENERAL’S OffiCE 
REPORT 2011/12.
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PERfORmANCE STATEmENT fOR 2011/12.
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yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012
PERFoRmAnCE StAtEmEnt



20
11

-2
01

2 
AN

NU
AL

 R
EP

OR
T

125

yEAR EnDED 30 junE 2012

CERtiFiCAtion oF tHE 
PERFoRmAnCE StAtEmEnt
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ContACt uS
GREATER ShEPPARTON CiTy COUNCiL
business hours
8.15am to 5pm weekdays

In person: 90 Welsford Street, Shepparton

Mail: Locked Bag 1000, Shepparton, VIC, 3632

Phone: (03) 5832 9700

SMS: 0427 767 846

Fax: (03) 5831 1987

email: council@shepparton.vic.gov.au

Web: www.greatershepparton.com.au

Twitter: @GreaterShepp

Facebook: Greater Shepparton City Council

National Relay Service (NRS) Greater 
Shepparton City Council is NRS friendly.

If you are deaf, hearing-impaired, or 
speech-impaired, we ask that you call us 
via the National Relay Service:

TTy users: 133 677 then ask for 
(03) 5832 9700

Speak & Listen users: (speech-to-speech 
relay) 1300 555 727 then ask for  
(03) 5832 9700

Internet relay users: Connect to the National
Relay Service via www.relayservice.com.au 
and then ask for (03) 5832 9700.

A hearing loop is also available at Council’s 
customer service centre and Council 
meeting room.

Interpreter service available.


